Public Document Pack

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on
Friday, 25th March, 2022
at 2.00 pm

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors

G Almass
P Grahame
K Maqsood
(Chair)
P Truswell
J Illingworth

J Bentley

M Foster
P Harrand
J Shemilt

(Linda Wild – Independent Member)

To Note: Please do not attend the meeting in person if you have symptoms of Covid-19
and please follow current public health advice to avoid passing the virus onto other
people.

Agenda compiled by:
Governance Services
Civic Hall

Helen Gray

Produced on Recycled Paper

1

AGENDA

Item
No
1

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting)

2

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
1

To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2

To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3

If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:RESOLVED – That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:-

2

Item
No
3

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes)

4

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
To disclose or draw attention to any interests in
accordance with Leeds City Council’s ‘Councillor
Code of Conduct’.

5

MINUTES

7 - 16

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
held 4th February 2022 as a correct record.
6

ANNUAL ASSURANCE REPORT ON
CUSTOMER CONTACT

17 46

To consider the report of the Director of Resources
which provides assurance over the control
environment in place for customer contact and
customer satisfaction in the areas of face to face
services; Contact Centre and digital services for
customers; and compliments and complaints.
7

APPROVAL OF LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
To consider the report of the Chief Officer Financial
Services which presents a revised Local Code of
Corporate Governance (the Code) for approval by
the Committee.

3

47 56

Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT
DECEMBER 2021 TO FEBRUARY 2022

8

57 86

To consider the report of the Chief Officer
(Financial Services) which provides a source of
assurance that the internal control environment is
operating as intended through a summary of the
Internal Audit activity for the period from December
2021 to February 2022. The report highlights the
incidence of any significant control failings or
weaknesses.

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022-23

9

87 112

To consider the report of the Chief Officer
(Financial Services) on the proposed Internal Audit
Plan for 2022-23. The work of Internal Audit
contributes to Leeds City Council achieving its key
priorities by helping to promote a secure and
robust internal control environment, which enables
a focus on accomplishing Best Council Plan
objectives.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2021-22
AND 2022-23

10

To consider the report of the Chief Officer Financial
Services presenting the proposed work programme
for the Corporate Governance and Audit
Committee for the 2022-23 municipal year, setting
out future business for the Committee’s agenda,
together with details of when items will be
presented.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

11

To note the date of the next meeting is proposed
as Friday 24th June 2022

Third Party Recording
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not present to see or hear the
proceedings either as they take place (or later) and to enable the reporting of those
4

113 118

Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No

proceedings. A copy of the recording protocol is available from the contacts named on the
front of this agenda.
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of practice
a)
Any published recording should be accompanied by a statement of when and
where the recording was made, the context of the discussion that took place, and a clear
identification of the main speakers and their role or title.
b)
Those making recordings must not edit the recording in a way that could lead to
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the proceedings or comments made by
attendees. In particular there should be no internal editing of published extracts;
recordings may start at any point and end at any point but the material between those
points must be complete.

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Friday, 4th February, 2022
PRESENT:

Councillor K Maqsood in the Chair
Councillors G Almass, M Foster,
P Grahame, J Illingworth and P Truswell
Linda Wild – Independent Member

59

Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents
There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents.

60

Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
There were no items identified which required the exclusion of the press or
public.

61

Late Items
Although there were no formal late items, the Chair did accept the inclusion of
Supplementary Information in respect of Agenda Item No. 13 - Approval of the
2020/21 Statement of Accounts and the External Auditors (Grant Thornton)
Audit Report (Minute No. 71referred). An amendment to the Statement of
Accounts and the inclusion of the ISA260 Audit Report, which were not
available at the time of agenda publication, but it was considered to be in the
best interests of the Council and other parties concerned that the matters be
considered without delay.

62

Declaration of Interests
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.

63

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors: J Bentley and P
Harrand.

64

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 26th November 2021 were
submitted for comment/ approval.
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 26th
September 2021 were accepted as a true and correct record.

65

Matters Arising from the Minutes
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Friday, 25th March, 2022

Page 7

The Committee received the following up-date on matters previously
considered by the Committee:
Procurement of External Auditor (Minute No.51 referred) – It was reported that
on the 12thJanuary 2022, Council resolved to accept Public Sector Audit
Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector led option for the appointment of
external auditors from 2023/24
66

Notes from the Consultative Meeting of Members of the Corporate
Governance and Audit Committee held on 17th December 2021.
The notes from the Consultative Meeting of Members of the Corporate
Governance and Audit Committee held on 17th December 2021 were
submitted for comment/ approval.
RESOLVED - That the notes from the Consultative Meeting of Members of
the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee held on 17th December
2021 were received as a true and correct record and the recommendations of
the meeting accepted by the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee.

67

Matters Arising from the Notes of the Consultative Committee
The Committee received the following up-date on matters previously
considered by the Consultative Committee:
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards - External Quality Assessment (Minute
No.4 referred) – With reference to the peer review undertaken by Glasgow
City Council and the concerns raised by Members in respect of the responses
to the questionnaire. It was report reported that Officers from Glasgow had
now provided the requested details. The Head of Audit would undertake
further work with a view to sharing the Committee’s concerns.
Annual Assurance Report on Corporate Risk Management Arrangements
(Minute No. 5 referred) – It was reported that the Partnership checklist, as
requested by Committee had been circulated on 21st January 2022.
Internal Audit Update Report August to November 2021(Minute No. 8
referred) – It was reported that an analysis of the Customer Satisfaction
Questionnaire data had been circulated to Members on 3rd February 2022.

68

Annual Assurance Report on Integrated Digital Services Controls
The Chief Digital & Information Officer submitted a report which presented the
Annual Assurance Report on Integrated Digital Services controls.
The report sought to provide assurance in relation to the management and
control mechanisms supporting the successful ongoing delivery of Integrated
Digital Services (IDS) service provision.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Friday, 25th March, 2022

Page 8

Addressing the report, the Chief Digital & Information Officer spoke in detail
about the report and highlighted the following areas of work:














Proactive maintenance and support across a broad range of systems
Service Centre fault and request resolution
Provision and support of IT equipment to individuals e.g. laptops,
screens, smartphones
Provision and support of IT equipment in office workspaces e.g.
conferencing room equipment, printers and shared desk facilities such
as screens/mice/keyboards
Provision and support of telephony solutions
Provision and support of data network connections including remote
connection to support home/mobile working
Management of user accounts and access to IT systems
Provision and proactive maintenance of IT systems
Storage and backup of data
Management and proactive maintenance of IT security systems
Management of information and compliance with data and security
standards
Management of business intelligence systems and production of data
dashboards/reporting
Development of business change proposals, business cases and the
Project/Programme management of change

Members welcomed the report commenting that it was reassuring and
comprehensive, as the performance of Information Digital Services (IDS) had
been a concern over a number of years. Members were aware that a digital
inclusion survey had been considered at the Infrastructure, Investment &
Inclusive Growth (Scrutiny Board) some years ago, and that an update on
collaboration work with the CCG would also be considered, but asked whether
there were any implications arising from the transition to regional integrated
care systems.
In responding the Chief Digital & Information Officer said it would be business
as usual, and that conversation were already taking place with stakeholders. It
was confirmed that IDS is a combined service and has oversight of the digital
city strategy. Whilst there are no plans to change services, the Chief Digital &
Information Officer will seek to develop the right structure. It was noted that
there may be some contractual change for IDS colleagues as those employed
by the Clinical Commissioning Group change employer.
Referring to the reduction in SLA performance on call waiting times, Members
asked when an update would be received.
Members were informed that call centre SLA measurement to recover was
actively monitored by Director of Resources. It was reported that performance
had improved significantly, with call waiting times reduced from 2 hours to 10
minutes or less.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Friday, 25th March, 2022

Page 9

Members asked about the development of digital mapping, particularly
opportunities for development and training available for Officers and Elected
Members.
Members were informed that there were plans to further develop digital
mapping as the demand increased. In terms of Officer and Elected Member
training, further consideration was required before reporting back to Members
Members requested if suitably large screens could be made available, not
necessarily on a full-time basis, and that training be provided to ensure that
resources can be exploited.
Members were informed that such requests would be considered further
during the development of the service.
Referring to the Digital Board, Members asked if this Board replaced the
existing board.
The Chief Digital & Information Officer said the Digital Board had been
established to provide an additional function, to manage the overall portfolio of
work and agree the relative priorities of each request. The Chief Digital &
Information Officer undertook to circulate the criteria used to prioritise digital
requests.
RESOLVED – To note the assurances provided in the submitted report
69

Annual Information Governance Report, including the Annual Report of
the Caldicott Guardian
The Director of Resources and Housing and the Director of Adults and Health
submitted a report which presented the Annual Information Governance
Report (including the Annual Report of the Caldicott Guardian).
The report sought to assure the Committee on the effectiveness of the
council’s information management and governance arrangements: that they
are up to date; fit for purpose; effectively communicated and routinely
complied with. The Caldicott Guardian element sought to assure the
Committee of the arrangements in place with regards to the confidentiality of
patient and service-user data.
Addressing the report, the Head of Information Governance & Cyber and Data
Protection Officer spoke on the key issues which included:



Improvements had been made in responding to Freedom of
Information (FOI) / Environmental Information Regulation (EIR) and
Individuals Rights (IR) requests within the statutory time limits.
The service had changed its structure and working practices and had
been renamed the Information Governance and Cyber service (IG&C).

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Friday, 25th March, 2022

Page 10






The mandatory Level 1 Information Governance eLearning
development and roll out cycle was currently underway, with a
provisional launch date to staff mid-September 2022.
Information Governance & Cyber were leading on a project to review
and update the current Data protection impact assessment template
and process
PSN certification was awarded in October 2021.
In August 2021, the National Data Guardian issued guidance on the
appointment of Caldicott Guardians, their role and responsibilities in
respect of data processing activities undertaken within their
organisations.

Referring to statutory information requests, Members noted this was an area
of weakness and that the Council would continue to be exposed to successful
complaints. Members asked if there was any benchmarking comparison with
other authorities, whether there was a downward trend, what was being done
to improve the situation.
The Data Protection Officer confirmed that benchmarking had been
undertaken last year, noting that significant work had been undertaken in the
current year to benefit from this. An analysis of the data received from core
cities and other local authorities, indicated that two local authorities were
performing better than Leeds, but others were significantly worse.
The Head of Information Governance & Cyber and Data Protection Officer
confirmed the benchmarking data would be shared with Committee.
Members were informed that the Information Commissioners Office (ICO) had
been in contact with LCC to undertake a survey to look at specific problem
areas, indicating that this was a national problem. By way of example, the
Data Protection Officer mentioned subject access requests (SARs), in
particular cases involving Leeds Children’s Social Care where each case
involved the redaction of up to tens of thousands of pages, a very timeconsuming process. Members were informed that this information had been
fed back to the ICO, and that a response / outcome was still awaited.
The Data protection Officer confirmed that changes had been implemented
including the disbanding of the central requests team and the role out of basic
level training on how to deal with SARs & FOIs in order share knowledge,
experience, and the load of work across the team. It was acknowledged that
it will take time to train up and get to standard, but that progress has been
made and will have significant impact. In addition, a review is taking place of
processes and activities undertaken in team to ensure that focus is given to
IMG work.
Referring to the use of CCTV to help against anti-social behaviour, Members
suggested it was seen as a mechanism to assist, but it often conflicted with
data protection rules.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Friday, 25th March, 2022

Page 11

Members were informed that CCTV came under the Surveillance
Commissioner, but enforcement on misuse was a data protection issue. It
was reported that the legal basis for use of CCTV in prevention and detection
of crime needs to prove necessity and proportionality and that DPIAs are used
to evidence this.
RESOLVED –

70

(i)

To accept the assurances provided by the Director of Resources
and the Director of Adults and Health that the information
governance arrangements are fit for purpose, up to date, are
routinely complied with, have been effectively communicated and
monitored and the necessary confidentiality arrangements are in
place with regard to the Caldicott Guardian element.

(ii)

That benchmarking data on statutory information requests be
circulated to all Members of the Committee

Annual Assurance Report in Relation to Employment Policies and
Employee Conduct
The Chief Officer Human Resources submitted a report which presented the
annual report on Council’s employment policies and employee conduct.
The report sought to provide assurance that, employee conduct was properly
managed, policies were regularly reviewed, and employee conduct formed
part of normal manager/ employee relations.
Addressing the report, the HR Services Manager explained that employment
policies were developed and reviewed by the HR team in consultation with the
trade unions and staff networks with additional advice where applicable being
provided by legal services. The views of and feedback from managers was
also collected via focus groups.
Members were informed that development of new/ reviews of existing policies
form part of the weekly meetings with the Deputy Leader and Executive
Member for Resources.
Referring to the disciplinary procedures, Members noted that in 2020/21 68
disciplinary cases were concluded, lower than previous years due the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic on the organisations ability to conduct all
meetings.
Members queried if there were any disciplinary’s still outstanding due to covid
and whether any cases had fallen away because they could not be dealt with
during the specified time period.
Members were informed that there were no outstanding disciplinary case as a
consequence of covid and HR were also not aware of any cases which had
fallen away due to time requirements.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Friday, 25th March, 2022

Page 12

RESOLVED – To accept the assurances of the Chief Officer Human
Resources on the robustness of the Council’s employment policies and
employee conduct.
71

Approval of the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts and Grant Thornton
Audit Report
The Chief Officer Financial Services submitted a report which sought approval
of the Council’s final Statement of Accounts and to consider any material
amendments identified by the Council or recommended by the auditors.
Members were informed that Grant Thornton’s audit of the final accounts was
nearing completion, and an interim report of their findings had been circulated
separately. The main points included in the report were:


Subject to completion of their remaining audit work, Grant Thornton
anticipate being able to issue an unqualified opinion on the 2020/21
Statement of Accounts,



There are expected to be no material unadjusted audit differences
affecting the financial statements;



An updated copy of the statement of accounts was published with this
report. The accounts would be certified by the Chief Finance Officer as
a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position as at 31st March
2021 prior to the Chair of the Committee being asked to certify them.

The Head of Finance reported that a number of amendments had been made
to the Statement of Account following publication of the report to Committee
and were detailed as follows:




(i)
(ii)

Pension Assets – The Council had received confirmation from the West
Yorkshire Pension Fund that the increase to its share of the WYPF
assets has increased by £42.8 m rather than the estimated adjustment
of £32.5m. There would therefore be a further decrease of £10.3m in
net pensions liabilities, with a corresponding change to the Pensions
reserve
Business Rates – The Council has re-assessed its appeals provision
for business rates following clarification by the government limiting the
ability for claims for a material change in circumstances due to covid.
The bad debt position for business rates has also been reviewed in
light of the better than expected collection rates during 2021/22. A
revised NNDR3 form for 2020/21 was submitted to the government on
31st January. The impacts on the Statement of Accounts would be:
A reduction of £3.7m in the Council’s share of the appeals provision
A reduction of £5.9m in the Council’s share of the bad debt
provision

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Friday, 25th March, 2022

Page 13

(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

A reduction of £9m in the Council’s share of the deficit carried
forward on the Collection Fund
An increase of £9m in the business rates income recognised in the
Income and Expenditure account
A reduction of £5.5m in the accrued Taxation Income Guarantee
grant, with a corresponding reduction in earmarked reserves
An increase of £750k in the levy payable to the regional business
rates pool, with a corresponding reduction in revenue reserves

Members were informed that a report would be brought back to Committee if
any material considerations requiring amendments to the accounts were to
arise during Grant Thornton’s remaining audit work, and therefore Committee
were asked to confirm a course of action which would enable the Chair to sign
off the accounts when complete if no such issues arose. Further, the Chief
Officer Financial Services was not currently aware of anything to prevent the
management representation letter from being signed at the appropriate time
subject to further discussions.
The Chair then invited Gareth Mills, External Auditors (Grant Thornton) to
address the Committee on the Audit findings (IAS260) Report for Leeds City
Council
Mr Mills explained that there were three elements to the audit process for
2020/21 – the audit of the accounts, the audit of WGA (Whole Government of
Accounts) returns, and the value for money audit. Whilst the audit of the
accounts was nearly complete further work was required around value for
money (VFM) and that this would be included within Grant Thornton’s
Auditor’s Annual Report. He said work continued to progress, but it was
anticipated that a further 3 months would be required (April 2022) before the
VFM work was concluded. It was not yet known when government guidance
would be issued to enable auditors to carry out WGA audit work for 2020/21.
The Committee then heard from Perminder Sethi (Grant Thornton) who
provided further details of the audit findings
Commenting on the ISA260 report, Members asked that a glossary could be
provided to clarify definitions of abbreviations.
Members were informed that the report would be updated, and abbreviations
would be made clearer. (The abbreviation PPE referred to a fixed asset, i.e.
property, plant & equipment)
Reference was made to the Council’s MRP Annuity method for paying of debt.
It was confirmed that this method was one of the options recommended in the
government’s statutory guidance. It was suggested that the repayment of debt
could be pushed into future years, that may then reduce the ability to spend in
future This was contrasted with an alternative approach, front loading the
MRP costs which would definitely impact on spending capacity in the short
term. It was noted that there is a need to take account of political pressures
that Members are elected to address.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Friday, 25th March, 2022

Page 14

Mr Sethi informed Members that the key issue was whether an informed
decision had been made based on all the information available and that the
value for money audit would look for evidence that a considered decision had
been made.
The Chief Officer Financial Services, noted that there are two elements to
consider: repayment and interest, and that the annuity approach aimed to
ensure that the overall cost of debt, i.e. the interest plus the repayment, was
spread evenly across the period that benefit was derived from the capital
expenditure. Members were informed that the majority of authorities use the
annuity model, which had been confirmed as appropriate by statutory
guidance.
Members referred to the valuation of the Temple Green Park and Ride
scheme which was assessed as a one-off error (included incorrectly in the
land and building valuation of phase 2 resulting in the valuation being
overstated). Members asked how was this different to others, to demonstrate
that it was “just a one-off error”.
Members were informed that the Park and Ride scheme was a large and
unusual scheme covering a complicated site with multiple phases, even
unique, and there was nothing else similar where this particular error could
have occurred which could attract a review .
Reference was made to the West Yorkshire Pension Fund asset revaluations,
Members querying if they were revaluations or corrections, also was it time
date stamped and were LCC looking for preferential market price
In responding the Head of Finance explained that valuations were carried out
by the West Yorkshire Pension Fund and were then fed into actuaries’
calculations and then into LCC accounts. Members were informed that
revised valuations were based on information received subsequent to those in
the draft accounts and were in relation to unquoted investments held by the
Fund. The revised valuations had been audited by the WYPF’s auditors. All
valuations were as at 31st March.
Members asked whether there were any significant audit risks in the work
remaining to be undertaken which could give the external auditor significant
cause for concern.
In responding Mr Mills said testing to date had revealed no material issues.
On the issue of work on journals, Mr Mills said that past experience suggested
that chances of material misstatement were not high.
The Chair thanked officers and representatives of Grant Thornton for their
attendance and contributions
RESOLVED Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Friday, 25th March, 2022

Page 15

72

(i)

To receive the audit report of the Council’s external auditors on the
2020/21 accounts and to note that there are expected to be no
unadjusted audit differences to the accounts.

(ii)

To receive and consider the updated 2020/21 Statement of
Accounts, and to approve these as the Council’s final audited
accounts subject to no issues requiring further material adjustment
arising as a result of Grant Thornton’s remaining audit work. The
Committee is further asked to authorise the Chair to approve any
additional non-material amendments which may be recommended
by the Chief Finance Officer, and, once the audit is complete, to
acknowledge this approval on behalf of the Committee by signing
the appropriate section within the Statement of Responsibilities on
page 1 of the accounts.

(iii)

To note that, should any material adjustments arise as a result of
Grant Thornton’s remaining audit work, a final version of the
Statement of Accounts will be presented for approval at the next
meeting of the Committee, prior to their publication.

(iv)

On the basis of the assurances received, the Chair is asked to sign
the management representation letter on behalf of the Corporate
Governance and Audit Committee (at the appropriate time subject
to further discussions).

Work Programme
The Chief Officer Financial Services submitted a report which set out the
proposed Work Programme for the remainder of 2022.
Referring to the new Work Programme for the 2022/23 Municipal year, the
Chief Officer Financial Services invited Members to suggest any matters
which could be included within the work programme. A similar invitation was
made in respect of the Internal Audit Plan, Members to suggest any particular
areas which should be included within the plan.
RESOLVED – The Work Programme and meeting dates be approved

73

Date and Time of Next Meeting
RESOLVED - To note that the next meeting will take place on Friday, 25th
March 2022 at 2.00pm in the Civic Hall, Leeds.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Friday, 25th March, 2022

Page 16

Agenda Item 6
Report authors: Dale Coombs, Lee
Hemsworth, Sonya McDonald, Alex
McEwan-Hannant

Annual Assurance Report on Customer Contact
Date: 25th March 2022
Report of: Neil Evans Director of Resources
Report to: Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐Yes ☒No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐Yes ☒No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions


The report provides assurance over the control environment in place for customer contact
and customer satisfaction in the following areas:
 Face to face services
 Contact centre and digital services for customers
 Compliments and complaints



There are defined standards, policies, processes and structures in place that provide the
basis for a customer centred approach to customer contact within the Council. The report
provides information that shows the extent to which these are embedded and complied with
in practice.



The report acknowledges the challenges that have impacted upon customer satisfaction
during the year and provides assurance that the control environment is being adapted and
strengthened further. There is a sound framework for monitoring and challenging
performance in relation to customer contact and satisfaction, and there are robust plans in
place for improving the customer experience.

Recommendations
a) The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the assurances provided
that



the appropriate systems and procedures are in place in respect of the Council’s
control environment for customer contact and satisfaction; and
there are robust plans in place for improving the customer experience.
Page 17

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee require the
Committee to consider the adequacy of the Council’s policies and practices to ensure
compliance with statutory guidance and the adequacy of the Council’s corporate
governance arrangements.

2

This report provides assurance to the Committee that the appropriate systems and
procedures are in place in respect of the Council’s control environment for customer
contact and satisfaction. The report includes information on the extent to which the
standards, policies and procedures in relation to customer contact and satisfaction have
been complied with.

3

The systems and processes that support the Council’s arrangements for customer contact
and satisfaction are set out at Appendix A. Each directorate considers these in the light of
their services and develops arrangements that are appropriate, proportionate and helpful to
them and our customers. Customers may access the services provided by each directorate
through the Council’s website, the Contact Centre or through Face-to-Face services. The
attached statement sets out the standing arrangements for the internal control of customer
contact and satisfaction through these channels, and provides evidence of monitoring and
compliance over the reporting period from January 2021 to December 2021. Information is
also provided for the period from January 2020 to December 2020 for the purposes of
comparison.

What impact will this proposal have?
Wards Affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

4

☐Yes

☒No

Maintaining a clear focus on delivering high quality public services is at the heart of the
Best City Ambition and it is essential that we have in place appropriate arrangements
to ensure that the Council’s values are routinely demonstrated in our interactions with
customers; that customers receive a high quality, efficient and effective service when they
contact us; and that there are robust processes to receive and act upon customer
feedback. This report outlines the arrangements that are in place to achieve this and the
approach that is being taken to deliver a seamless service for customers that contact us.

What consultation and engagement has taken place?
5

This report is provided for information and has not therefore been subject to consultation.

6

Engagement with relevant service areas and colleagues has taken place for each of the
improvement activities detailed within the report.

What are the resource implications?
7

The customer contact services detailed within this report have been delivered within the
budgets allocated for 2021.

8

Additional one-off staffing resources required to achieve the performance standards for the
Contact Centre outlined in this report cost £564K. It is proposed that this is funded from the
Strategic Contingency reserve. Given the ongoing impact of COVID-19 on service delivery
across the Council, this reserve, along with funding unforeseen budget pressures and
ensuring the Council becomes more financially resilient, will also be used to fund the
Page 18

recovery of affected services following the pandemic. This includes targeting the backlogs
of work which have built up in some services.
What are the legal implications?
9

N/A

What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
10 There are significant risks of an organisational, reputational and service delivery nature,
associated with poor customer contact and satisfaction levels. The actions taken to
improve Council processes and procedures around customer contact and satisfaction help
to mitigate the risks.
Does this proposal support the council’s 3 Key Pillars?
☐Inclusive Growth

☐Health and Wellbeing

☐Climate Emergency

11 The work outlined in this report supports the Council’s ambition to be an efficient,
enterprising and healthy organisation by making better use of resources and exploring the
use of modern technology.
12 The work aims to improve the end-to-end customer experience and ensure that services
are delivered in the most cost-effective way with a clear focus on delivering high quality
services for our customers.
Options, timescales and measuring success
a) What other options were considered?
13 Consideration has been given to focussing solely on operational improvements within the
Contact Centre pending the digital improvements that are currently being developed. This
was discounted as it was considered that this would reduce the pace of improvement. It
was determined that all opportunities to improve the customer experience and performance
should be evaluated and progressed where business cases identified a benefit.

b) How will success be measured?
14 Progress against the actions detailed within this report will be closely monitored and
delivered within defined timescales.
c) What is the timetable for implementation?
15 Improvement activity timescales are detailed within the report.

Appendices
16 Appendix A: Customer Contact and Satisfaction – Statement of Internal Control

Background papers
17 N/A

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Introduction
1. This statement of internal control provides assurance
that the appropriate systems and procedures are in
place in respect of the Council’s control environment
for customer contact and satisfaction and there are
robust plans in place for improving the customer
experience.

Page 21

2. The customer contact and satisfaction framework is
comprised of the standards, policies, systems and
processes which ensure that the Council’s services are
accessible through face to face, telephone and digital
channels.
3. The framework seeks to ensure that the Council’s
values are routinely demonstrated in our interactions
with customers; that customers receive a high quality,
efficient and effective service when they contact us;
and that there are robust processes in place to receive
and act upon customer feedback.

Define and
Document

Review and
Refine

Cycle of
Internal
Control

Meaningfully
Monitor

Clearly
Communicate

Effectively
Embed

4. The statement sets out the standing arrangements for
the internal control of customer contact and satisfaction
and provides evidence of monitoring and compliance over the reporting period from January 2021 to December 2021. Information is also
provided for the period from January 2020 to December 2020 for the purposes of comparison.
5. The statement includes opportunities that have been identified to improve these arrangements.

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Define and Document
The Best Council Plan (BCP)
7. The BCP is the Council’s strategic plan which sets out its ambitions, outcomes, and priorities for the City of Leeds and for the Local
Authority. Maintaining a clear focus on delivering high quality public services is at the heart of the BCP.
8. Underpinning everything we do and how we work to achieve our ambitions are our #TeamLeeds Values:
•
•
•
•
•

Being open, honest and trusted
Treating people fairly
Spending money wisely
Working as a team for Leeds
Working with all communities

Page 22

9. Leeds City Council is committed to providing the highest standards of services to its customers. The following provides an overview of the
primary policies, principles, standards and procedures that direct the customer contact functions.
Table 1: Overview of Primary Policies, Principles, Standards and Procedures
Policy, Standard or Procedure

Overview

Officer delegation and sub delegation
schemes

Each Director has separate and joint responsibilities for areas of customer contact and
satisfaction within their remit.

Compliments and Complaints Policy and
associated guidance

The Council welcomes and encourages feedback from members of the public and uses it to
maintain and improve standards and the quality of service provided. The policy details the
way in which complaints will be managed, investigated and acted upon.

Customer Care Standards

Customer Care Standards set out what customers can expect when they contact the
Council. Customers may contact the council digitally, by phone or by coming into our
buildings.

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Web Content Principles and Standards

Web content is created in line with the standards set in the local digital declaration which as
a council we have signed up to. They are based on the guidance/best practice set out by
the Government Digital Service.

Public Sector Bodies (Websites and Mobile
Applications) (No. 2) Accessibility
Regulations 2018

The accessibility regulations state that websites should be ‘perceivable, operable,
understandable and robust’. It is a requirement of the regulations that an accessibility
statement is included on the website of Public Sector Bodies.

Equality Improvement Priorities

A key area of focus is to increase digital inclusion for those in poverty to provide greater
access to jobs, skills and learning to reduce poverty. An update has been included in the
Equality Annual Report

Training Guides

Training guides are in place for each service delivered through the Contact Centre and
articulate the approach and methodology for dealing with calls.

Page 23

Customer Service Excellence is included in induction, service specific and ongoing training
for Contact Centre and Face to Face colleagues. A new training package was launched in
August 2021 - Customer Care Basics – this provides an overview of basic customer service
skills and techniques to deliver a quality service to our customers and understand its
impact. The training explores topics such as handling customer expectations, effective
communication and methods for creating a positive first impression.
Roles and Responsibilities
10. Each Director has separate and joint responsibilities for areas of customer contact and satisfaction within their remit. Customers may
access the services provided by each directorate through the Council’s website, the corporate Contact Centre or through Face to Face
services. Feedback on the services provided by the Council is managed through the corporate Compliments and Complaints function. The
Director of Resources has responsibility for the website, the Contact Centre and the central Compliments and Complaints function
(Customer Relations Team), and the Director of Communities, Housing and Environment has responsibility for the community hubs
covering provision of the Council’s One Stop Centre services; community-based housing management and advice services; front line
community library services and mobile services; and local job-shop provision. The Directors of Adults and Health and Children and
Families have responsibility for their own Complaints functions given the statutory nature of the functions. The Council is committed to
delivering a seamless service for customers that contact us and aims to take a whole-Council approach to service provision with
mechanisms in place to address the root cause of the contact and facilitate continuous improvement in the services provided across the
Council.

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

11. The following table shows the service areas that are supported by the Contact Centre.
Table 2: Contact Centre Services

Page 24

Directorate

Services

Adults and Health

Adult Social Care, Blue Badge

Children and Families

Children’s Social Care, School Admissions

Communities, Housing and Environment

Choice Based Lettings, Housing, Registrars, Elections, Refuse, Pest Control, Large
Collections, Environmental Action Services, Benefits, Welfare Support, Anti-Social
Behaviour Unit.

City Development

Highways, Planning

Resources

Gold Number, Council Tax

12. The Contact Centre also handles customer enquiries via social media (Twitter and Facebook) and email. Feedback from this team is used
to put in place improvements to the Council’s website. The Resources directorate manages the Council's website and is responsible for
developing effective ways for customers to find the information they require.
13. Face to Face Services are managed by the Communities, Housing and Environment directorate. A resident may walk into a public office
about any Council service but primarily there are:
•
•
•

Libraries: to borrow books, use the computers, job search
Job shops: provide access to job opportunities and support to gain employment
Customer Service enquiries, for example council tax, housing or benefits. Other areas of support that can be accessed include:
Welfare Rights, Debt Support, Registrars, social prescribing, Leeds Credit Union and more.

14. The Customer Relations Team manages the relationship with the Local Government Ombudsman, Social Care Ombudsman and Housing
Ombudsman, and the complaints for the Communities, Housing and Environment, City Development and Resources directorates.
Complaints relating to Adults and Health and Children’s and Families are managed separately due to different statutory responsibilities
and timescales.

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

15. The table below sets out a summary of officer groups providing oversight and accountability in the customer contact and satisfaction
framework.
Table 3: Officer groups for oversight and accountability

Page 25

Group

Composition

Function

Best Council Team: People and
Culture

Director of Resources, Chief Officer Strategy and
Improvement, Chief Officer HR, Chief Officer Community
Hubs, Welfare and Business Support, Chief Officers
Resources and Strategy for both Adults and Health and
Children and Families, Chief Officer Operations and
Active Leeds, Chief Digital and Information Officer,
Acting Head of Communications and Marketing

Meets monthly to identify options to ensure
LCC is an efficient, enterprising and healthy
organisation. With a focus on setting and
directing policy in relation to any
organisational issues that apply across all
departments and services including the
People Strategy; governance; risk;
communications; and complaints.

Contact Centre Board

Director of Resources, Chief Officer Sustainable Energy
and Air Quality, Chief Digital Information Officer, Deputy
Chief HR Officer, Head of Shared Services.

Monthly reports on Contact Centre
performance and transformation activity.

Customer Access Leadership
Team

Chief Officer Community Hubs, Welfare and Business
Support, Head of Customer Contact, Deputy Head of
Customer Contact, Head of Shared Services, Training
and Development Manager, Financial Inclusion
Manager.

A joint meeting between Face to Face and
Contact Centre colleagues to ensure
alignment of priorities and objectives.

Contact Centre Service Groups

Heads of Service and / or their delegates for each
service area detailed in Table 2 and Contact Centre
management.

To review Contact Centre performance,
discuss and address root cause of contact
and improve end-to-end customer
experience.

16. In relation to complaints, reports to directorate leadership teams were paused during the pandemic however quarterly reporting in high
volume areas have continued to be reported into service leadership teams. Complaint handling reporting has continued to be covered in
the annual and quarterly Best Council plan performance reports which are considered by the Corporate Leadership Team.

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

17. The table below sets out a summary of democratic oversight and accountability in the customer contact and satisfaction framework.
Table 4: Democratic oversight and accountability

Page 26

Councillor / Committee

Oversight

Executive Member for Resources

Regular updates by the Chief Officers and Director with the Executive Member for
Resources on all matters relating to customer services.

Executive Member for Communities

Regular updates by the Chief Officer Community Hubs, Welfare and Business Support and
Communities, Housing and Environment Director with the Executive Member for
Communities on all matters relating to Face-to-Face customer services.

Scrutiny Board for Resources

Reports describing the work and performance information in relation to the Contact Centre

Scrutiny Board for Communities, Housing
and Environment

Reports describing the work and performance information in relation to the Face-to-Face
Customer Services

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee

Annual report on customer contact and satisfaction

Clearly Communicate
18. The Corporate Leadership Team is responsible for delivering a customer centric culture and this expectation is cascaded to
directorates. Our values and behaviours underpin the way we deliver services and guide the way we all work. Providing excellent
customer service is linked to ‘living our values’ and shows our customers that we are always striving to put them at the heart of everything
we do. Our values and behaviours are routinely communicated across the Council and discussed with each individual member of staff
through the appraisal process. The customer care standards are underpinned by the council values and are designed to embed a
customer centred approach in how we interact with customers.
19. The policies, principles, standards and procedures that direct how the Council should interact with its customers are communicated to
officers throughout the Council through a combination of training, guidance and toolkits available on the Council’s internal intranet and

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

training platform. Within the Contact Centre, individual coaching takes place based on performance information and relevant changes are
communicated through regular service meetings and an established SharePoint site.
20. A well trained, customer focussed workforce is essential in delivering the excellent service that we strive to provide for our customers.
There is a dedicated training team within the Contact Centre that provides comprehensive customer services training to Contact Centre
staff and Face-to-Face staff. During 2021, this team delivered 163 training courses and briefings to Contact Centre and Face-to-Face
staff, including Customer Service Excellence and service specific courses to enable staff to handle customer queries and service requests
in relation to the services detailed in table 2.
21. The Compliments and Complaints procedure and Customer Care Standards are available for customers to access through the Council’s
website. The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual report including performance information is publicly available and
received by the Chief Executive. For any Ombudsman cases where a remedy is required, along with details to the service, details are also
provided to the relevant Director for awareness and appropriate action to be taken.
Page 27

22. The accessibility statement is kept up to date and published on the Council’s website. The statement includes information on how
accessible the website is and the actions being taken to improve accessibility.

Effectively Embed
23. When effectively embedded, the internal control framework supports the delivery of high quality services and high levels of customer
satisfaction. Assurance that the processes are effectively embedded is demonstrated through the performance information, including
measurements of customer satisfaction and complaints.
24. The standards are underpinned by the Council values and help focus on services being accessible, provision of clear timescales, and
clear communications, and the customer being kept informed by approachable and knowledgeable staff. The commitment is to measure
timescales and use customer surveys and feedback to share and learn from customers’ experiences. The main measurements are
therefore around timescales, complaints and satisfaction surveys.
25. Levels of contact, key performance measures and customer satisfaction levels are provided below for Face-to-Face Services, Contact
Centre, Digital Services and the corporate Compliments and Complaints function.

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Face-to-Face Services
Table 5: Level of Contact (Face-to-Face services)
Channel

Page 28

Jan 2020 to Dec 2020

Jan 2021 to Dec 2021

Community Hubs

513,384

416,140

Community Libraries - Visits

265,982

8,063

Books Issued

616,801

687,887

PC Usage

101,534

99,536

Central Library - Visits

122,483

95,712

Books Issued

50,887

47,583

PC Usage

20,858

18,008

26. In the Face-to-Face service new methods of delivery have been established from learning during the pandemic, these include phone and
video appointments – and a ‘one team’ approach.
27. A review of the community hub and Library opening hours was undertaken resulting in significant savings (circa £450k) and rota
efficiencies. In addition, this service has provided support to the vaccination effort, handing over mobile community hubs and select
venues.
28. There were 1,112 instances of a member of the job shop team securing a customer employment between Jan - Dec 2021.
Face-to-Face Services - Customer Satisfaction
29. Continues to be at 99% satisfaction levels (based on 2020 figs as not captured during 2021 due to covid).

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Contact Centre and Digital Services
Table 6: Level of Contact (Contact Centre and Digital Services)
Channel

Jan 2020 to Dec 2020

Gross calls received

Jan 2021 to Dec 2021

Page 29

1,398,906

1,428,472

Emails and admin (Contact Centre)

218,908

254,034

Social Media – Facebook followers (at December)

40,751

44,782

Social Media – Twitter followers (at December)

26,164

26,850

Social Media – Direct messages received

18,217

19,100

Unique website page visits

14,586,475

13,608,932

Self Service online transactions

3,702,657

3,917,159

79%

80%

Percentage of customers accessing digital services

30. During 2021 the outbound posts made via the LCC Facebook page reached 9,125,136 people, with 91,357 engagements to the posts.
This is made up of 55,915 clicks and 35,442 comments.
31. During the period from 1st January 2019 to 31st December 2019, there were 11,469,675 website page visits. The number of website page
visits increased by over 3 million during 2020 as citizens were keeping up to date on the changes to services and information that were
brought about during the pandemic. Website visits decreased in 2021 by nearly 1 million compared to 2020. There are two main areas
that account for this reduction:
•
•

There were 1.3 million views to coronavirus content in 2020, compared to 600k views in 2021
There were around 1.3 million views to recycling site information and bookings in 2020, compared to 1.1 million in 2021

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Table 7: Performance Data (Contact Centre and Digital Services)
Performance Measure

Jan 2020 to Dec 2020

Jan 2021 to Dec 2021

Page 30

Contact Centre Answer Rate

92%

82%

Contact Centre Average Speed to Answer (seconds)

235

614*

Contact Centre Average Handling Time (seconds)

516

543

Contact Centre Average Email Response (days)

6

4

Direct messages dealt with or signposted online

86%

85%

Percentage of Customers Accessing Digital Services

79%

80%

* The Contact Centre is taking a risk-based approach to resource allocation, prioritising lines that may have safeguarding implications or are of a very sensitive

nature, for example, people calling the Council to register a death. The average speed to answer Child Social Care and Registrars Priority calls was between one and
two minutes, and the answer rate for these lines was 89% and 96% respectively.

32. Significant operational changes were made in March 2020 to enable the council to respond to the Covid pandemic. Workplaces were
closed and some services were suspended. Staff were retrained and deployed from other areas of the Council to support the work of the
Contact Centre and handle phone calls from customers. From April 2021, as Face-to-Face services re-opened, the staff that were
supporting the Contact Centre moved back to their roles.
33. During 2021 there were a number of factors which adversely impacted upon the waiting times experienced by customers calling the
Contact Centre. Having experienced a low level of staff turnover in 2020, there was a very high level of turnover as the economy
recovered from the Spring of 2021. This resulted in not only lower levels of staffing but a loss of expertise in key areas whilst new staff
were trained. The filling of vacancies was done in line with the budget allocation for the Contact Centre which had been predicated on
reducing call volumes. Whilst some new process improvements have been introduced which have mitigated the issue, overall call volumes
increased during 2021 against the budget prediction. Backlogs of service requests resulting from lockdown measures significantly
contributed to this. In addition, the complexity of enquiries also increased, leading to longer call times. The Contact Centre has
recognised the impacts and has therefore brought additional staffing into play which is designed to improve performance based on current
volumes. Further recruitment is underway to boost the numbers of staff whilst technological solutions are implemented. Looking forward

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

staff reductions will only be made when there are secure reductions in call volumes brought about through channel shift or service
changes.
Contact Centre - Customer Satisfaction
34. Within the Contact Centre, customer satisfaction was measured through externally provided software until May 2021 when the contract
with the provider of the software expired. In order to deliver a saving in the region of £60k per annum a decision was taken to develop an
in-house customer satisfaction survey. The new customer satisfaction survey was launched on 5th January 2022 and selects customers to
ask for their view on the level of service they received from the Contact Centre. As at the 31st January, 14,133 surveys had been issued
and 1,752 had been returned from customers, a response rate of 12.4%. The scores from these surveys are included in table 8.
Table 8: Contact Centre Customer Satisfaction (5th January to 31st January 2022)

Page 31

Question

Score

Overall, how satisfied are you with the service you received

78%

How satisfied were you with the adviser’s ability to communicate in a positive and caring way

86%

How satisfied were you with the adviser’s knowledge when answering your questions and providing guidance

84%

Did we resolve your query on the call (Y/N)

75%

Is it the first time you have contacted us about this query (Y/N)

68%

How satisfied were you with the time taken to answer your call

50%

Did you try to find the information you needed on our website before calling

47%

35. The scores from the 1,392 survey respondents in respect of CSO empathy and knowledge are 86% and 84%, which indicates that
generally, customers are satisfied with the service they receive from individuals. Our quality assurance processes include undertaking a
review of all calls where the customer has indicated that they were not satisfied with the service they have received so that appropriate
remedial action is taken and service levels are continually improved.
36. The new customer satisfaction survey referred to above asks customers if they had tried to find the information they needed on our
website before calling, and 47% of customers indicated that they had attempted to find the information they needed from the website

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

before calling the Contact Centre. This suggests there is scope to improve the information available to customers on the website which
will, in turn, improve the customer experience and reduce demand in the Contact Centre. A programme of work is being developed to
review the content of the website and provide better digital options for our customers so that optimal numbers of customers find it easy
and efficient to use. There is also an ongoing piece of work that aims to improve the communications being issued by the Council to
customers, making the communications clearer and more accessible for people.
37. Previous Annual Assurance Reports to the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee have included customer satisfaction results in
respect of web self-service forms. The previous system that provided online customer forms was replaced by an in-house developed
solution in early 2021, and the new solution does not currently have the functionality to issue customer satisfaction questionnaires. A
review will be undertaken to determine the most appropriate method to capture customer satisfaction information from customers that use
the self-service forms.
Compliments and Complaints
Page 32

Table 10: Number of Compliments and Complaints
Stage 1

Stage 2

Ombudsman Cases

Ombudsman Cases
Upheld

Compliments*

Jan to
Dec 2020

Jan to
Dec 2021

Jan to
Dec 2020

Jan to
Dec 2021

Jan to
Dec 2020

Jan to
Dec 2021

Jan to
Dec 2020

Jan to Dec
2021

Jan to Dec
2020

Jan to Dec
2021

3605

4671

458

614

53

89

21

19

269

225

Resources

302

378

26

26

7

6

0

0

97

126

City
Development

300

262

75

72

23

21

8

1

54

38

Adults and
Health

383

369

73

77

17

25

8

9

724

662

Childrens and
Families

255

303

23

37

22

19

4

6

67

105

4845

5983

655

826

122

160

41

35

1211

1156

Communities,
Housing and
Environment

Total

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

*Compliments included in the table above include only those received and logged by Customer Relations. Not all compliments received in some areas of the Council are
captured formally by Customer Relations, with many sent to services directly which are not reflected in these figures.

38. To allow for year-on-year comparison the figures in tables 10 and 11 reflect the Council’s structure from the 1st April 2021. For example,
throughout 2020 Housing was part of the Resources and Housing directorate and the Contact Centre was part of the Communities and
Environment directorate. All Housing compliments and complaints for 2020 and 2021 are classified under the Communities, Housing and
Environment directorate, and the Contact Centre within the Resources directorate, where the services now sit. Other changes to the
Council’s organisational structure in April 2021 are reflected in the same way.

Page 33

39. In his 2021 annual letter which provided a view on cases investigated between 1st April 2020 and 31st March 2021, the Local Government
and Social Care Ombudsman has confirmed that of 33 cases formally investigated, 76% of cases were upheld* (* complaints upheld – the
LGO upholds complaints where they find some form of fault in an authority’s actions, including where the authority accepted fault before
they were investigated). Five of these cases related to one planning issue raised by 5 individual customers. This compares to an average
of 72% amongst similar authorities. 100% of remedies were complied with** (** compliance with recommendations – the LGO
recommends ways for authorities to put things right when faults have caused injustice and monitor compliance with their
recommendations. Failure to comply is rare and a compliance rate of below 100% is a cause for concern). The ‘Ombudsman cases’
columns in the table above include all cases received, not just those which were investigated formally. Where cases are not investigated
formally this can mean the Ombudsman are satisfied with the Council’s actions or consider that they are unlikely to find fault.
Table 11: Complaints responded to within target
Jan to Dec 2020

Jan to Dec 2021

Communities, Housing and Environment

86.3%

64.6%

Resources

89.9%

78.2%

City Development

74.1%

70.1%

Adults and Health

96.4%

97.4%

Children and Families

82.0%

78.9%

Total

86.30%

68.50%

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

40. Children and Families and Adults and Health Directorates work to statutory timescales as follows:
•
•

Children and Families: 20 working days at stage 1 and 65 workings days at stage 2.
Adults and Health: 20 working days for complaints risk assessed as low risk, 20 working days for complaints risk assessed as
medium risk and up to a maximum of 6 months for high risk complaints.

41. All other services work to 15 working days for both stage 1 and stage 2.
42. Responses within target have been lower than would be expected over 2021 as many services have been impacted by the pandemic.
Work is ongoing to support services in the recovery from this and to provide a greater understanding of the types and volumes of
complaints received, to develop learning and systems to ensure improved compliance within our complaints policy. Actions taken to
support improvement include developing early intervention processes within Housing for housing repairs complaints and expanding the
support provided to investigating officers.
Page 34

43. The 2021 figures may change as there are cases where responses may have been issued but not yet recorded centrally.

Meaningfully Monitor
44. The mechanisms in place for monitoring performance and compliance with the internal control framework are set out below for Face-toFace Services, Contact Centre and the corporate Compliments and Complaints function.
Face-to-Face Services
Table 12: Face-to-Face Services – Monitoring Information
Performance narrative

Changes made

Further work to take place

The Community Hub and Library development
programme aims to enhance customer
experience and to increase the range of Council
enquiries at these sites.

Completed refurbishment of:

Halton – initial concept agreed and work started to
develop a detailed design

Armley – fully complete during 2021
including all works to clock and
book display

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL
Holt Park – fully complete by early
2021 including all payments to the
PFI contractor being made
Farsley – opened in 2021
Beeston – opened in 2021
Crossgates – detailed design
agreed and work underway to
secure a temporary location for the
Library for the duration of the works
Covid restrictions easing has resulted in Hubs
and Libraries fully reopening.

Following the easing of restrictions,
the Hubs and libraries are now
back fully open to the public
including late nights.

Page 35

Partners are now welcome back
into buildings to deliver additional
services, although maximum
occupancy and adequate
ventilation may limit the number in
some venues.

Some mitigations remain in place including
screens on the front desk and in appointment
booths, and dividers between customer PC’s. As
restrictions continue to ease we will review
whether to keep these installed or not (in line with
government guidance)

A review of the Community Hub and Library
opening hours was undertaken

A wholesale review of opening
hours took place during 2021.
Standardising in this way enable
the service to make significant
savings, and brought about
efficiencies in rota management.

The review has been successful, however as a
result the rota now has very little slack. This
needs to be kept under review to ensure sites
remain up and running as advertised. A ‘one
team’ approach has been adapted to support this
– with all sites now able to book online/telephone
appointments for customers at any venue in the
city – this maximises the resource we have
available to us.

Contact Centre needed additional resources to
staff the Covid line which was open 7 days a
week during the peak. Some staff from sites
which were closed were deployed to this

The Covid line supported residents
with requests for Local Welfare
Support/food parcels/help with
prescription delivery etc. The calls
were varied, sometimes complex
and very often dealing with
distressed customers. This support

In the early part of the year Face-to-Face staff
continued to provide support for the covid line,
Vaccinations calls, this has now ceased
(Vaccination support is offered on an ad hoc/as
requested basis). Face-to-Face continues to

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL
support SIP payments both raising and
authorising on a daily basis.

Mobile Community Hubs

2 vans from the mobile fleet have
been given over to health
colleagues in order to support the
vaccination effort. These vans have
been to different areas of the city
to, often to low uptake
communities. This arrangement
continues

Gradually the vans will be brought back into use
by the service. In line with this, one Mobile
Community Hub is now operational within the city.
The Mobile Hub visits the following wards each
week; Farnley & Wortley, Beeston & Holbeck,
Swarcliffe and Burmatofts & Richmond Hills

Community Hubs as vaccination venues

During the year we have offered
certain venues as community
based vaccination points e.g.
Dewsbury Road, Compton Centre.
This arrangement will continue for
as long as we can provide it and is
required.

We will review sites offered and continue to
support the effort wherever possible.

Employment support could not continue in its
usual form in the early stages of the year with
appointment only remaining necessary – however
the service has since fully re opened and
customer starts, customer throughput and job
outcomes have begun to increase.

Job support has reverted back to
face to face within sites. During
2021 we have also begin the
delivery of the ESIF employment
support contract which has brought
a more intensive support element to
what we can offer – this contract
runs for a 3 year period. The total
number of job outcomes during this
period is 1112

This service will continue to deliver employment
support and this will be kept under review to
deliver the best possible service in the changing
circumstances.

Page 36

continued in the early stages of the
year but has now ceased as
community hubs have reverted to
full opening hours.

Contact Centre and Digital Services
45. Our vision is to achieve the highest standards of customer satisfaction and minimise call wait times across all services. The formal
monitoring mechanisms in place have informed the significant amount of transformation work that is in progress. The transformation work

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

will improve the performance of the Contact Centre, improve the end-to-end customer experience and address the issues that create
avoidable contact.
46. Key to delivering the excellent service that we want to give our customers is to understand and address the root cause for the contact. The
Contact Centre is in part a barometer for the problems the public is experiencing with services and by improving the links between the
Contact Centre and services, we can better place the Council to react and recover.

Page 37

47. The Contact Centre holds regular liaison meetings with service areas to discuss performance and agree actions that will improve the
customer experience overall. We have recently enhanced this process and formalised a robust performance management and reporting
framework to ensure that appropriate feedback and escalation mechanisms are in place to address the root cause of issues and improve
the service that the customer receives from start to finish. This includes reviewing end-to-end processes to ensure that customers have a
seamless experience when they interact with the council and feeding back to services where transparent and proactive messaging to
customers would prevent the need for customers to contact the council. This reporting mechanism will also formally capture where there
have been issues with the service provided. Escalation measures will be reviewed and strengthened where necessary to ensure that
relevant remedial action is taken to address the root cause of the issues.
48. Individual performance is closely managed within the Contact Centre and there are mechanisms in place to review and assess the quality
of the interactions with customers. Call listening, feedback, supervision and coaching are embedded in the quality assurance processes to
promote a culture of continuous improvement within the Contact Centre.
49. The performance of the Contact Centre and the effectiveness of digital options available to customers are closely monitored within the
service and reported through the Contact Centre Board.
Compliments and Complaints
50. Table 13 provides monitoring information on service areas which have received the most complaints by directorate.
Table 13: Compliments and Complaints – Monitoring Information
Performance narrative

Changes made

Further work to take place

Communities, Housing and Environment
Housing

Wider reporting on complaints trends
across Housing is provided quarterly to the
service management team, with access to

Quality Assurance and quarterly reporting will
continue and be adapted to provide greater
insight into areas requiring focus, the outcomes

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL
Housing complaint volumes varied in 2020 and
2021. In early 2020, complaint volumes reduced
greatly due to the impact of the pandemic as nonessential repairs were suspended.
Complaint volumes returned to normal levels
sooner in non-repair services, with the increase in
repairs complaints seen more in 2021.
This has impacted on current performance, as
work continues to recover form the backlog of
repairs, which has been impacted by both staffing
challenges and availability of materials. The
impact of the pandemic on Housing performance
including repairs and complaints was considered
by Housing, Communities and Environment
Scrutiny Board at their October 2021 meeting.

Page 38

Housing complaints peaked in August 21 but
have reduced over recent months.
In the second half of 2021, 70% of Housing
complaints have related to repairs services.

top level complaint performance data
provided widely across all Housing
Services.

from Customer Satisfaction Surveys will be
analysed to provide additional context to this
work.

Following internal audit recommendations,
a new Quality Assurance process,
sampling 10% of Housing complaint
responses, has been undertaken and the
results shared with the service from mid2021. This has given insight into the areas
where responses can be strengthened in
terms of their quality with key messages
and reminders with staff shared.
We commenced undertaking satisfaction
surveys from mid-2021 with complainants.
The results from these have shaped
Quality Assurance work with reports on the
outcomes shared with management.
Training sessions have been provided to
over 40 investigating officers from teams
across Housing, in addition to rolling out
the online Customer Care Training for all
staff.

Customer Relations will continue to support
managing complaint volumes and outstanding
cases as part of the recovery plan.

Thorough the formation of the Early
Intervention Team in the repairs service,
avenues are being explored in how best to
facilitate speedier resolution of
straightforward complaints, to reduce
workloads in providing formal responses
and provide better outcomes for
customers.
Learning from complaints is now a regular
monthly feature in the staff e-bulletin and
teams encouraged to discuss as part of
staff training sessions

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL
Housing have met the requirements of the
Housing Ombudsman Complaint Handling
Code, self-assessing against the standards
in the code and making this publicly
available online.
Communities, Housing and Environment
Waste Management
Overall complaint volumes received by Waste
Management in 2020 and 2021 are similar in
number.

Page 39

Complaint volumes in 2020 were low at the
beginning of the pandemic but increased, through
2021 volumes have fluctuated.
In 2021 missed collections have accounted for
half of all complaints, with black bins being most
common.
Collections have been impacted by staffing
capacity because of the pandemic, with positive
cases and self-isolation impacting on the service
that can be provided, often at short notice.
Towards the end of 2021 complaint volumes have
reduced, from October fewer than 100 complaints
have been received each month, with around 1.5
million collections taking place each month.
During 2021 waste presented for collection by
residents has been 13% higher on average than
normal levels. However at peak periods during
2021 this figure has been up to 25% higher.

The primary focus for the service during
2021 has been to maintain frontline waste
and recycling collections. This has forced
other service improvement work – mainly
the Service Review launched in 2019, to
continue to be paused.
Despite the considerable pressure caused
by the pandemic, Waste Management
have been able to make a number of
smaller scale changes to maintain/improve
the reliability of collections during this
period:
3 new temporary collection routes have
been added to Waste Management’s
resources. These have helped the service
to keep up with the constant pressure
caused by out of dates routes and new
development.
8 additional Chargehands posts (drivers)
have been created and recruited to. This
exercise took place during the National
HGV shortage. The additional posts will
help Waste Management to continue to
navigate the pandemic, minimising
collection failures due to staffing impacts.

The Waste Management service have now
restarted the Service Review. This principally
will look at route re-design – establishing new,
consistent, collection schedules city-wide, and
bringing new developments into local collection
routes. It will also improve recycling provision in
a number of parts of the City.
In 2022 Waste Management, alongside
colleagues in Clearer Neighbourhoods, will
move into the new purpose built Newmarket
Headquarters. This move will bring together
teams from a number of separate depots across
the City.

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL
City Development
Across 2020 and 2021, complaint volumes in City
Development have been reasonably consistent.
The areas of the directorate receiving larger
complaints volumes have remained Planning,
Sport and Highways.

Changes have been made in the way
Highways complaints are managed which
has placed greater focus on separating
requests for service from formal
complaints, with the aim of providing
speedier resolution for requests for
service.

Work will be undertaken as an expanded offer
from Customer Relations to provide greater
insight into complaints across Active Leeds.

Customer Relations and Learning Inclusion
are working together to improve the
service’s response to complaints, and they
are undergoing a significant recruitment
drive which, when staff are in place, should
provide better service and a reduction in
complaint numbers.

One significant area of learning has been
around the support for carers who apply for
special guardianship orders. As an authority we
want to ensure packages of support are fair to
all carers and that the family’s needs are met to
guarantee the stability of the placement. A full
review of the process has been carried out and
a revised offer will be published in the first
quarter of 2022.

Areas raised in planning complaints often concern
applications or permitted developments.
Within Active Leeds, Bodyline complaints account
for over half of complaints received in 2021
because of centre closures.

Page 40

Within Highways, there has been little of common
issue raised in complaints.
Complaints - Children and families
Children and Families complaint numbers are
higher than in 2018-2020. We have seen stage
one and stage two complaints about Education
almost double between 2020 and 2021. The
increase mostly relates to Learning Inclusion and
specifically SENSAP services. The increase
reflects rising demands on the service coupled
with ongoing staffing concerns.
Children’s Social Work Service complaints have
not risen significantly at stage one but we have
seen an increase in stage two submissions with
themes of limited improvement in service
following stage one response, general lack of
customer service and challenge of assessment
content/bias
Complaints – Adults and Health

Customer Relations feed complaint
learning into quality assurance and practice
improvement work plus there is an
increased focus on areas such as bias in
assessments within new workforce
development training programmes.

Several actions were taken in response to
complaints to improve services.

Work is being done to develop a system which
ensures that lessons learned are shared widely

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL
The direct impact of covid-19 on services saw
Adults and Health receive fewer complaints than
in a typical year. The focus for the Complaints
Team has been to ensure that complainants were
kept informed and that their complaints were
resolved within timescales agreed with them
achieving a target of 97.4%.

Page 41

The impact of Covid-19 runs through most
complaints. Covid-19 complaints raised concerns
about care homes not allowing visits; not
receiving updates from staff about their family in
care homes and/or supported living homes; poor
infection control by staff not properly wearing PPE
and/or disposing of the same properly; spending
time indoors with no interaction with friends, no
family visits and care home lack of effort to
facilitate digital contact, little wellbeing input no
walks in fresh air
The top 3 issues complained about were
Inconsistent homecare delivery, quality of service
and people challenging assessment outcomes.

In response to a family’s complaints that
they had stopped receiving regular updates
from a Supported Living setting, a system
was put in place to ensure continuity in
communication and for weekly updates to
be provided.
In response to complaints about staff not
adhering to PPE guidelines, it was
reiterated to all care workers the
importance of wearing full PPE with clear
guidance provided about the expectations
for wearing PPE. Staff were retrained in
infection control and prevention.
In response to people challenging
assessment outcomes, most complainants
felt that evidence relating to medical
conditions had not been taken into
consideration. In these cases any expert
opinion the complainants provided was
taken into consideration and in many
cases, this resulted in the appeal being
successful. In relation to people with
hidden disabilities assessors sought expert
evidence to establish if the applicants met
the criteria.
In response to some complaints
challenging outcome of financial
assessment, training has been delivered to
all financial assessment officers /
managers involved in Care Act financial
assessments covering the appropriate
legal test for deprivation of assets and how
to apply the test correctly.

across A&H, NHS partners and commissioned
service providers.
In response to lessons learned from complaints
reviewed by the Local Government and Social
Care Ombudsman in relation to commissioned
services, the current Complaints Joint Protocol
with commissioned service providers will be
updated to include a request that all draft
complaint responses in relation to Leeds
commissioned services must be sent to the
Complaints team for quality assurance and
approval before they are sent to the
complainant.

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL
Customer Care Training
Customer Care Basics on-line training launched
in August 2021 provides an overview of basic
customer service skills and techniques to deliver
a quality service to our customers and understand
its impact. The training explores such as handling
customer expectations, effective communication
and methods for creating a positive first
impression.

The training includes as a background
document the Investigating Officer Guide Corporate Complaints Guide to Conducting
Complaint Investigations

Evaluate training against the customer care
standards. Target March 2022

Page 42

Review and Refine
51. The documents, systems and processes which together form the framework surrounding customer contact and satisfaction have been
under continuous review during this reporting period. The framework seeks to ensure that the Council’s values are routinely demonstrated
in our interactions with customers; that customers receive a high quality, efficient and effective service when they contact us; and that
there are robust processes in place to receive and act upon customer feedback.
Face-to-Face Services
52. The changes in Face-to-Face that have been retained based on learning from the pandemic, include:
•
•
•

the use of phone and video appointments, and to continue with embedding the ‘one team’ approach;
working from home/hybrid working as appropriate and in line with corporate direction;
continue to increase the digital options available to customers including guiding and educating them on independent use.

53. With regard to digital inclusion, the Council continues to develop and implement our best practice work on addressing Digital Inclusion in
the city. The impact of Covid in this area has been profound and has touched all aspects of individuals and families lives. The 100%
digital Leeds ambition remains, and through the close working within IDS and the Library Service, support in the city can now include;

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

•
•
•
•

the provision of equipment, grant funding, technical support, Digital Champions training, signposting to existing statistics, reports
and toolkits.
advice on how to tackle digital inclusion issues in a way that works for different organisations
a growing network of digital Champions who help us to reach the digitally excluded in their communities by advocating the benefits
of digital, and signposting people to free training and support available across the city.
a growing Tablet lending scheme with support on how to use tablets available free of charge in many of the Libraries and
Community Hub sites across the city

Table 14: Face-to-Face Policy Reviews

Page 43

Document

Purpose

Monitored

Review date

Review

Accountability and
oversight

Matrix accreditation

An improvement tool
to help Jobshops put
customers at the
heart of what they do

Annual continuous
improvement check, with
full accreditation every 3
years

Full accreditation 2024

Action plan developed and
regularly reviewed

Chief Officer Community
Hubs, Welfare and Business
Support

Equality
Improvement Priority
– increase digital
inclusion particularly
for those in poverty to
provide greater
access to jobs, skills
and learning to
reduce poverty

Support focus on key
area of equality
priority for the
service

Customer Access
Leadership Team

July 2022

Review and update included in
Equality Annual Report

Chief Officer Community
Hubs, Welfare and Business
Support

Contact Centre and Digital Services
54. The shape and performance of the Contact Centre are bound up in how the Council envisages customer contact going forward. There are
a number of key principles which govern this:
•
•

To eradicate as many service failures as possible to minimise the need for contact
To provide clear public communications to minimise the need for clarification

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

•
•
•
•

To ensure effective feedback and completion of tasks once actions by the public are raised to minimise repeat contact;
To enable those who have access to digital technology to self-serve as a first preference;
To widen participation in the use of digital technology;
To provide excellent face to face and telephony contact for key services which require complex handling or for customers who are
unable to realistically self serve.

55. Within this context, the Contact Centre will act as a source of intelligence and learning for the organisation so that it can be used to deliver
improvements to services council-wide. The Contact Centre will provide the necessary data to service areas to enable them to get things
right first time, help drive forward customer-focussed digital solutions and support service areas to ensure the information that customers
need is readily and easily available for them. For customers that need to contact us, call wait times will be minimised and we will
endeavour to provide the highest levels of customer service.

Page 44

56. Transformation and improvement activities are key to delivering an efficient, accessible and customer focussed Contact Centre operation.
Several opportunities have been identified to achieve savings through transformation work linked to customer contact. These projects
focus on tactical digital improvements that will automate processes and enable customers to self-serve at their own convenience.
57. It is anticipated that by offering better online options for customers, there will be more capacity for the contact centre to handle complex
cases which will enhance the user experience for non-digital customers. Whilst the transition to online will be delivered in such a way as to
make the process the route of choice for most of our customers, we are committed to ensuring that those who are unable to use that
option are provided with relevant support. Digital inclusion is being considered within each piece of transformational work to ensure that all
customers have a way of contacting the council.
58. There is scope to improve the information available to customers on the website which will, in turn, improve the customer experience and
reduce demand in the Contact Centre. A programme of work is being developed to review the content of the website and provide better
digital options for our customers so that optimal numbers of customers find it easy and efficient to use. There is also an ongoing piece of
work that aims to improve the communications being issued by the council to customers, making the communications clearer and more
accessible for people.
59. In order to identify best practice and further opportunities for improvement, a benchmarking group has been established with other local
authorities and the learning from this group will feed into service improvement activities. A review of the Contact Centre’s resource
planning and forecasting practices is currently being undertaken and is due to be complete by the end of the financial year. The results of
the review will be incorporated into the operational improvement plan for 2022.

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Compliments and Complaints
60. A review of the Council’s Compliments and Complaints Policy was due in November 2021, however this has been delayed due to the
pressures of the ongoing pandemic. Work is currently ongoing to improve the Quality Assurances processes in relation to complaints and
processes are being refined to provide greater intelligence to service areas that have high complaint volumes to inform service
improvements. A performance reporting tool has been developed that allows managers to track and understand their service performance.
This will be piloted in April 2022 and rolled out more widely as appropriate during the coming year.

Statement of Assurance
Page 45

61. Having undertaken the review of the system of internal control for customer contact and satisfaction outlined in this statement the Director
of Resources and the Director of Communities, Housing and Environment are satisfied that the Council’s arrangements for customer
contact and satisfaction are fit for purpose.
62. The Director of Resources and the Director of Communities, Housing and Environment have identified the following opportunities for
enhancement of the system of internal control for customer contact and satisfaction and will implement these over the course of the
2022/23 municipal year.
Opportunities for Improvement
•
Define and Document

•
•

Clearly Communicate

•

A review of the sub-delegation scheme for the Resources directorate will be undertaken to ensure it remains
up to date and fit for purpose in light of changes to the structures.
The Compliments and Complaints Policy will be reviewed.
A programme of work is being developed to review communications to the public, the content of the Council’s
website and provide better digital options for customers.
The Contact Centre will provide the necessary information to service areas to enable them to get things right
first time, help drive forward customer-focussed digital solutions and support service areas to ensure the
information that customers need is readily and easily available for them.

CUSTOMER CONTACT AND SATISFACTION – STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Effectively Embed
Meaningfully Monitor

Review and Refine

•

A new performance reporting tool to facilitate learning from customer feedback and complaints will be piloted
and rolled out as appropriate.

•

Closer engagement with service areas to improve to improve end-to-end processes to facilitate a seamless
experience for customers when they interact with the Council.

•

The improvement activities outlined within this statement will be appropriately monitored.

•

A review is being undertaken within Community Hubs and Libraries to ensure that Council services and
partners in the city are making the most of the capabilities and assets available within the Hubs and Libraries.
A review will be undertaken to determine the most appropriate method to capture customer satisfaction
information from customers that use the self-service forms.
A review will be undertaken of the ‘Percentage of Customers Accessing Digital Services’ key performance
indicator and of the key performance indicators relevant to the Contact Centre.

•
•

Page 46

Agenda Item 7
Report author: Kate Sadler
Tel: 0113 37 88663

Approval of Local Code of Corporate Governance
Date: 25th March 2022
Report of: Chief Officer Financial Services
Report to: Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions





This report presents a revised Local Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) for approval
by the Committee.
The Code will underpin the Council’s governance arrangements, and in so doing will support
the Council in achieving its Best City Ambition and the three key pillars of Inclusive Growth,
Health and Wellbeing, and Climate Emergency.
The principles and commitments set out in the Code meet the requirements of the CIPFA
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016) (CIPFA’s
Framework) which is established proper practice for local authorities.

Recommendations
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee are requested to:
a) approve the Local Code of Corporate Governance attached at Appendix A
b) note the arrangements proposed for reporting annually on monitoring and compliance.

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1 The existing Corporate Governance Code and Framework was adopted by this committee in
April 2017. Committee asked, during their consideration of the Annual Governance Statement
2021, that the Code be reviewed.
What impact will this proposal have?
Wards affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

Page 47

☒ No

2 The proposed Local Code of Corporate Governance, which is set out at Appendix A to this
report, is based in the principles set out in the International Framework: Good Governance in
the Public Sector, and reflected in CIPFA’s Framework as illustrated in the diagram below.

3 The International Framework notes that: “Principles A and B permeate implementation of
principles C to G. The diagram also illustrates that good governance is dynamic, and that an
entity as a whole should be committed to improving governance on a continuing basis through a
process of evaluation and review.”
4 CIPFA’s Framework sets out a series of sub principles and illustrative behaviours within each of
these seven principles which together ensure that resources are directed in accordance with
agreed policy and according to priorities, that there is sound and inclusive decision making and
that there is clear accountability for the use of those resources to achieve desired outcomes for
service users and communities.
5 The principles set out in the Code, are very closely aligned to the CIPFA principles, and
supported by a set of commitments which reflect the behaviours identified within the CIPFA
Framework, whilst recognising the unique arrangements for corporate governance in place at
Leeds City Council.
6 In particular, the Code notes that the principles and commitments as applied in Leeds will
enable the authority to direct and control its activity to achieve the Best City Ambition which was
adopted as part of the Budget and Policy Framework by Full Council on 23rd February 2022.
7 Importantly, the Code also reflects the Leeds City Council values and behaviours which are at
the core of the way in which the Council seeks to deliver its ambition.
8 In order to ensure that the Code is reflected in practice and procedure within Leeds City
Council, it will be necessary to articulate the framework of arrangements in place to deliver
against each of the commitments, and the assurance that those arrangements can be
demonstrated to be effectively embedded and routinely applied.
9 As identified in the proposed Code, the Committee (and through it the Council) is able to rely on
three lines of assurance; operational, specialist / oversight, and independent. Some of this
Page 48

assurance will be reported directly to the Committee through its work programme, whilst other
assurance will be provided elsewhere as identified through the assurance map. Appendix B to
this report provides a diagrammatic representation of the assurance map.
10 The governance framework and detailed map of assurance will be reported to Committee on an
annual basis to support the Committee’s approval of the Annual Governance Statement.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
11 The Code has been shared with the Chief Finance Officer, Monitoring Officer and Head of Paid
Service, often referred to as the golden triangle of governance in local authorities. Each have
confirmed that they are content with the proposed Code.
12 The Code has been shared with the Executive Member for Resources.
13 Article 15 of the Constitution provides that changes to the Corporate Governance Code and
Framework can be approved by the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee. The Code
has been circulated to Members in advance of inclusion in the Committee’s agenda.
What are the resource implications?
14 The arrangements set out ensure the sustainable use of the council’s resources to deliver the
strategic ambitions of the council.
What are the legal implications?
15 Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, requires a local authority to
conduct a review at least once in a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and
include a statement reporting on the review with any published Statement of Accounts
16 Regulation 6(1)(b) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, require that the statement is an
Annual Governance Statement.
17 In England the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 stipulate that the Annual Governance
Statement must be “prepared in accordance with proper practices in relation to accounts”. The
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016) is that ‘proper practice’.
18 There is no legislative requirement for the inclusion of a Code of Corporate Governance in the
Council’s Constitution. However CIPFA’s Framework recommends that local authorities



review existing governance arrangements
develop and maintain an up-to-date local code of governance, including arrangements
for ensuring ongoing effectiveness
 report publicly on compliance with their own code on an annual basis and on how they
have monitored the effectiveness of their governance arrangements in the year and on
planned changes.
19 The arrangements set out in this report will ensure that Leeds City Council is able to continue to
meet its statutory obligation to conduct a review of internal control, and to prepare and publish
its Annual Governance Statement in accordance with proper practice.
What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
20 Local government organisations are vitally important to taxpayers and service users. Clear
governance arrangements address risk throughout the planning and delivery of services and
ensure that the council meets the highest standards and that governance arrangements are not
only sound but are seen to be sound.
Page 49

21 Poor governance can lead to poor strategic planning, unfocussed decision making, and lack of
performance monitoring and management, impacting on the delivery of services and the
council’s ability to provide best value to citizens and communities.
22 Poor governance arrangements can lead to governance failures which in turn become the
subject of external audit public interest reports, or rapid reviews. Governance arrangements in
the public services are keenly observed and significant governance failings could attract huge
public attention and reputational harm.
Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars?
☒ Inclusive Growth

☒ Health and Wellbeing

☒ Climate Emergency

23 Clear and embedded governance arrangements will support the council in the sustainable
delivery of all of its strategic goals.

Options, timescales and measuring success
What other options were considered?
24 In considering the proposed Code benchmarking was undertaken against core cities and the
West Yorkshire group of Councils; some included a Code and Framework in their Constitution,
some a code but the framework was separately reported, and some did not include any form of
Code or Framework within their Constitution, although all referred to both code and framework
in their Annual Governance Statement.
25 It is felt that the inclusion of the Code within the Leeds City Council Constitution reflects the
importance of the Code in underpinning the Council’s approach to governance. However, it is
proposed that the evolving nature of the framework of arrangements through which the Council
meets the commitments set out in the Code would be more appropriately included in an annual
report to this committee, which will support the Committee’s consideration of the Annual
Governance Statement each year.
How will success be measured?
26 Assurance in relation to the Council’s adherence to the Code will be included in the annual
report to committee setting out the Corporate Governance Framework.
27 The Assurance map attached at Appendix B to this report shows the three lines of assurance as
they apply to the Council’s arrangements.
What is the timetable for implementation?
28 The approved Code will be included in the Constitution with immediate effect, reflecting
introduction of the Best City Ambition.
Appendices
29 Appendices are attached as follows:
A. Local Code of Corporate Governance
B. Assurance Framework
Background papers
30 None
Page 50

Code of Corporate Governance

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1

Appendix A

INTRODUCTION

1.1

2

This Code of Corporate Governance sets out the principles and commitments the
Council has in place to ensure that its resources are used to achieve defined
outcomes for the citizens and communities in the Leeds area.
ACHIEVING OUR AMBITIONS

2.1

2.2

3

These governance principles enable us to direct and control our activity to achieve
our Best City Ambition: Tackling Poverty and Inequality. They bring together the
systems, processes, and culture in place across the Council by which we plan and
deliver services to the citizens of Leeds in way that shows how the council:


Does the right things in the right way;



Is open, and transparent about what it does and how and why it does it;



Engages with citizens, partners, and stakeholders to plan and deliver
outcomes; and



Is held to account.

Our Code of Corporate Governance should be read and understood in conjunction
with our values which shape our behaviours and underpin the way in which we work
to achieve our ambitions.
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVENANCE

3.1

The Code is based on seven principles1.
Behaving with integrity
(Doing the right thing in the
right way)

Defining outcomes
(Having realistic priorities for
what we can and should
achieve)

Ensuring openness and
engagement
(Sharing information and
inviting participation)

Determining effective
interventions

Managing risk and
performance

(Considering the options and
taking informed decisions)

(Ensuring that we can
implement our plans)

Developing capacity

Effective accountability

(Getting the best out of our
resources and our people)

(Ensuring our processes are
clear, robust, and open to
review)

1

Derived from the Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (CIPFA/Solace, 2016),
which is a best practice framework for developing and maintaining a locally adopted code of governance
Part 5(j)
Page 1 of 3
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Last amended on

Page 51

3.2

Code of Corporate Governance
Each principle is supported by the commitments set out below:
Principle

Behaving with
integrity:
We will behave with
integrity,
demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical
values, and
respecting the rule of
law

Ensuring openness
and engagement:
We will ensure
openness and
comprehensive
stakeholder
engagement

Defining outcomes:
We will define
outcomes in terms of
sustainable economic,
social and
environmental
benefits

Determining effective
interventions:
We will determine the
interventions
necessary to optimise
the achievement of
the intended
outcomes

Commitment
We are committed to ethical governance and will embed our
values and use them as the basis for planning and implementing
services, and have clear and enforced codes of conduct for
Members and officers
We will work with partners and providers to ensure that they
share our ethical standards
We will abide by the rule of law and will act in accordance with
the legal and regulatory framework, dealing effectively with any
breach
We will have a zero-tolerance approach to corruption and
misuse of power
We are committed to a culture of openness and will be
transparent in our decision making
We will use appropriate means to consult and engage with
service users, local communities, and stakeholders to inform our
activity
We will develop formal and informal partnerships to ensure
efficient use of resources and sustainable achievement of
outcomes
We will maintain a clear strategic plan which sets out our
priorities, and the intended outcomes for the citizens and
communities of Leeds now and in the future.
We will work to deliver our strategic plan in a way that is
economically, socially, and environmentally sustainable and
demonstrates excellent value for money
We will ensure that our services are appropriate to the different
needs of citizens and communities and that we deliver fair
access to our services
We will ensure that decision makers are provided with relevant,
timely information to support decisions which are proportionate,
sustainable and realistic to meet identified aims and outcomes.
We will ensure that our financial planning, and budgeting
processes inform, reflect and support our decision making.
We will consider best value in respect of all strategic objectives
through the delivery of service specific outcomes.

Part 5(j)
Page 2 of 3
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Last amended on

Page 52

Code of Corporate Governance
Principle

Commitment

Managing risk and
performance:

We will integrate robust and effective risk management
arrangements into all our activity and decision making to identify,
mitigate and manage risks to the achievement of our goals.

We will manage risks
and performance
through robust
internal control and
strong public financial
management

We will have effective arrangements to plan and monitor our
performance in line with our strategic objectives, and to identify
and deal with any failure in service delivery.

Developing Capacity:

We will continually review how we use our assets and
information to achieve outcomes efficiently and effectively.

We will develop the
Council’s capacity,
including the
capability of its
leadership and the
individuals within it

Effective
accountability:
We will implement
good practices in
transparency,
reporting and audit, to
deliver effective
accountability.
4
4.1

We will have robust arrangements for internal control which are
defined and documented, clearly communicated, effectively
embedded, meaningfully monitored and regularly reviewed.

We will develop, maintain, and implement arrangements which
support and develop the capacity of Members and Officers.
We will ensure that leadership roles are clear and defined and
that relationships between elected Members and officers work
effectively to set and implement our strategic goals.
We will provide clear, accessible, and timely information so that
we can be held to account for the decisions we take and for our
performance.
We will have effective arrangements to provide independent
assurance in respect of our governance arrangements
We will welcome peer challenges, reviews and inspections from
regulatory bodies, and will implement action plans which arise
from them

MONITORING CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Council obtains three levels of assurance as to the effectiveness of its
arrangements:

Operational
assurance

Officers with operational ownership and management responsibility provide
assurance that arrangements are communicated and embedded

Specialist
assurance

Officers with specialist responsibility for oversight and compliance provide
assurance that arrangements are up to date and fit for purpose, that
compliance is monitored, and arrangements reviewed

Independent
assurance

Independent assurance is provided by the Council’s internal audit service,
external auditors, and other external inspectors

4.2

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is responsible for oversight of these
corporate governance arrangements and will receive annual reports setting out the
Framework of Internal Control and mapping the assurance available prior to approval
of the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.
Part 5(j)
Page 3 of 3
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Last amended on

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ASSURANCEMAP

Responsibilities for implementation and accountability
Operational ownership and management

Oversight and compliance specialists

Page 55

• Directors and section heads
• sectional and directorate leadership teams

• Specialist officers
• Proper officers

Define and Document

Clear arrangements for sub-delegation of
functions and responsibilities

Development of policy & procedure

Clearly Communicate

Leadership – cascading of information and
expectation

Provision of guidance & training,

Systems of managerial control (Supervision /
121 / appraisal etc.)

Oversight and advice tailored to service need

Effectively Embed

Local performance monitoring;
Meaningfully Monitor Identification and mitigation of risk;
Escalation of concerns
Review and refine

Officer oversight:

Democratic Oversight

Feedback on systems and processes

3rd line of defence
Arrangements for
testing
Independent
Assurance

External Inspectors

2nd line of defence

External Audit

Full Council
Corporate Governance
and Audit Committee
(Delegated responsibility)

Systems and Processes of Internal Control




1st line of defence

Internal Audit

Bodies charged with
governance:

Development of robust performance indicators;
Benchmarking
Review of legislation, sector best practice and
guidance;
Strategic review of arrangements

Corporate Leadership Team
Statutory Officers (Monitoring Officer, Chief Finance Officer, Head of Paid Service)
Executive Members
Executive Board
Scrutiny Boards
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Standards and Conduct Committee

Action Planning &
Monitoring
Officer oversight

Democratic oversight

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Report author: Louise Booth
Tel: 0113 3780503

Internal Audit Update Report December 2021 to February
2022
Date: 25th March 2022
Report of: Chief Officer (Financial Services)
Report to: Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions


This report provides a source of assurance that the internal control environment is operating
as intended through a summary of the Internal Audit activity for the period from December
2021 to February 2022. The report highlights the incidence of any significant control failings
or weaknesses.



The work of Internal Audit contributes to Leeds City Council achieving its key priorities by
helping to promote a secure and robust internal control environment, which enables a focus
on accomplishing Best Council Plan objectives.

Recommendations
The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to
a) receive the Internal Audit Update Report covering the period from December 2021 to
February 2022 and note the work undertaken by Internal Audit during the period covered by
the report;
b) note that there have been no limitations in scope and nothing has arisen to compromise the
independence of Internal Audit during the reporting period.
c) Receive the report providing information relating to the Monitoring of Urgent Decisions
covering the period December 2021 to February 2022

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1 The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee has responsibility for reviewing the adequacy
of the Council’s corporate governance arrangements, including matters such as internal control
and risk management. The Committee also considers the Council’s arrangements relating to
internal audit requirements, including monitoring the performance of Internal Audit.
Page 57

2 This report provides the Committee with a summary of the Internal Audit activity for the period
December 2021 to February 2022. The work of Internal Audit offers a key source of assurance
providing the Committee with some evidence that the internal control environment is operating
as intended.
3 The report also includes information relating to the monitoring of urgent decisions which is
included to enable timely consideration of these matters by Committee as agreed following
consideration of the annual decision making assurance report at the July meeting.
What impact will this proposal have?
Wards affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

☒ No

4 This report provides a source of assurance that the internal control environment is operating as
intended. The report highlights the incidence of any significant control failings or weaknesses
that would require the intervention of the Committee.
5 The work of Internal Audit contributes towards Leeds City Council achieving its key priorities
and Best Council Plan objectives.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
6 The Internal Audit Plan is developed in consultation with Members and senior management
across the authority. Consultation around key risks and priorities continues throughout the year,
and continual engagement with directorates is driven through the ongoing completion of audit
assignments and the agreement of the associated recommendations.
What are the resource implications?
7 The Internal Audit Plan includes a number of reviews that evaluate the effective use of
resources and provide assurance on the corresponding financial governance, risk management
and internal control arrangements.
8 The Internal Audit Update Report also provides the Committee with assurances around the
effective use of Internal Audit resources through information pertaining to the delivery and
completion of the annual plan.
What are the legal implications?
9 The Chief Officer (Financial Services), as the council’s Section 151 Officer, is responsible under
the Local Government Act 1972, for ensuring that there are arrangements in place for the
proper administration of the authority’s financial affairs. The work of Internal Audit is an
important source of information for the Chief Officer (Financial Services) in exercising her
responsibility for financial administration.
10 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the Head of Audit to deliver an
annual audit opinion and report that can be used by the council to inform its Annual Governance
Statement. Each Internal Audit Update Report will provide a rolling quarterly opinion that will
feed into the Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion.
11 The Internal Audit Plan includes a number of reviews that provide assurances around the
application of the statutory and constitutional framework.
Page 58

What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
12 The Internal Audit Plan is subject to review throughout the financial year to ensure that audit
resources are prioritised and directed towards the areas of highest risk. This process involves
the review of information from a number of sources including the corporate and directorate risk
registers.
13 The risks relating to the achievement of the Internal Audit Plan are managed through ongoing
monitoring of performance and resource levels. This information is reported to the Committee.
Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars?
☒ Inclusive Growth

☒ Health and Wellbeing

☒ Climate Emergency

14 The Internal Audit Plan provides assurances that span a range of themes including coverage
across the council’s three Key Pillars.

Options, timescales and measuring success
What other options were considered?
15 The work of Internal Audit provides a key source of assurance to the Committee. Additional
assurances are obtained through a range of further reports presented to the Committee
throughout the year.
How will success be measured?
16 Success can be measured through the delivery of the Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion.
Each quarterly update report will provide a rolling quarterly opinion that will reflect the work
completed during the period.
17 Further performance measures and drivers are under continual review to ensure that relevant
performance information is reported to the Committee throughout the year.
What is the timetable for implementation?
18 The Internal Audit Plan is in place and is approved annually by the Committee.
Appendices
19 A – Internal Audit Update Report December 2021 – February 2022
B – Monitoring of Urgent Decisions December 2021 – February 2022
Background papers
20 None.

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A
Leeds City Council
Page 61

Internal Audit Update Report
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
25th March 2022

INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT 2021/22
1ST December 2021 to 28th February 2022

Page 62

1

Purpose of this report

1.1

This report provides the Committee with a summary of the work completed by Internal Audit during the period from 1st
December 2021 to 28th February 2022. The work of Internal Audit offers a key source of assurance providing the Committee
with some evidence that the internal control environment is operating as intended.

2

2021/22 Internal Audit Plan Progress

2.1

The work of Internal Audit is directed by the annual Internal Audit Annual Plan. This has been developed in line with the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and has been reviewed and approved by the Committee.

2.2

Throughout the audit year we will develop our Annual Assurance Opinion based upon:
 Work carried over from the previous year.
 Work contained within the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan that was approved by the Committee in March 2021.
 Unplanned work undertaken in response to emerging risks and priorities.

2.3

We have looked at the priorities within the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan to ensure that these are aligned with current risks and
council objectives. Those audits deemed as a lower priority in the current time period have been re-evaluated on a risk
basis. This has resulted in some audits being deferred to the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan.

3

Changes to the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan

3.1

At the beginning of the year provision is made in the allocation of audit resources for unplanned work, through a
contingency. As requests for audit work are received, or more time is required for jobs or changes in priorities are identified,
time is allocated from this contingency. As risks and priorities change throughout the year, we may also alter the profile of
the plan to ensure attention is focussed on areas of the highest risk in the most efficient and effective way. Our quarterly
reports will provide the Committee with details of audits that have been deferred, added to or deleted from the audit plan, as
agreed in conjunction with management. Below is a summary of material changes that have been made to the 2021/22
Internal Audit plan to date. Schools are excluded from this information due to the dynamic nature of this area of the plan.

Page 63

Directorate/Service

Audit Assignment Title

Deferred / Added / Removed

Cross Cutting

Contain Outbreak Management Fund

Added – Added to the plan as a result of
funding provided to help reduce the spread of
coronavirus. Our work will involve verifying
that monies have been spent in accordance
with the grant terms. The time taken out of
contingency

Finance & Key Financial Systems

Income Management Systems

Deferred – Audit included in 2022/23 Internal
Audit Plan to allow time for new system to
embed.

Finance & Key Financial Systems

Silver Group Challenge

Deferred – Obtained assurance through
attendance at the group and via regular
liaison with the Chief Finance Officer. Future
coverage incorporated within an audit of the
financial challenge which is included within
the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan.

Adults & Health

Recovery Service

Deferred – Risk assessed in discussion with
management and reprioritised for inclusion
within the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan.

Children & Families

Area Inclusion Partnerships

Removed – Audit removed from plan due to
Scrutiny Board review. Time incorporated
within 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan to respond
to new and emerging risks which will enable
the opportunity to respond to any outcomes.

Page 64

Directorate/Service

Audit Assignment Title

Deferred / Added / Removed

Children & Families

Commissioning

Removed – Risks assessed in discussion
with management and audit removed from
the plan.

Children & Families

Safeguarding

Deferred – Assurances have been obtained
through Scrutiny involvement and ongoing
Ofsted inspection with the report to be
published in April. We will be working with the
directorate to provide support and challenge
around the outcomes of the report and an
audit has been included in 2022/23 Internal
Audit Plan.

Children & Families

Support for Care Leavers

Deferred – Risk assessed in discussion with
management. Assurances will be taken from
the ongoing Ofsted inspection. This will be
reprioritised for inclusion within the scope of a
contract management audit in the 2022/23
Internal Audit Plan.

Communities, Environment &
Housing

Private Sector Regulation – Selective
Licensing

Deferred – Risk assessed in discussion with
management and reprioritised for inclusion
within the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan.

Communities, Environment &
Housing

Housing Disrepair

Removed – Risks were assessed and
discussed with the Chief Officer Housing and
it was agreed that this would be replaced with
a review of Void Management in the 2022/23
plan.

Page 65

Directorate/Service

Audit Assignment Title

Deferred / Added / Removed

Communities, Environment &
Housing

Leeds Building Services Assurances

Deferred – Coverage discussed with the
Chief Officer Housing and agreed to review
the replacement for the Total Repairs system,
Connect, with the audit to be scheduled
within the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan.

Communities, Environment &
Housing

Waste Strategy

Removed – Pending feedback on
government consultation, which is expected
to influence the local Waste Strategy, at
which point future coverage will be
considered.

Communities, Environment &
Housing

Houses of Multiple Occupancy – Follow Up

Deferred – Risk assessed in discussion with
management and reprioritised for inclusion
within the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan.

City Development

Highways DLO

Deferred – Risk assessed in discussion with
management and reprioritised for inclusion
within the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan.

4

Final Internal Audit reports issued

4.1

We have issued 6 audit reports (excluding external work) during the period from 1st December 2021 to 28th February 2022.

4.2

Depending on the type of audit review undertaken, an assurance opinion may be assigned for the control environment,
compliance, and organisational impact. The control environment opinion is the result of an assessment of the controls in
place to mitigate the risk of the objectives of the system under review not being achieved. A compliance opinion provides
assurance on the extent to which the controls are being complied with. Assurance opinion levels for the control environment
and compliance are categorised as follows: substantial (highest level); good; acceptable; limited and no assurance.

4.3

Organisational impact is reported as either: major, moderate, or minor depending on the severity of the issues identified
within the audit. Any reports issued with a major organisational impact will be reported to the Corporate Leadership Team
along with the relevant directorate’s agreed action plan.

4.4

The following table provides a summary of the reports issued during the period from 1st December 2021 to 28th February
2022, along with the assurances provided where applicable.
Audit Opinion
Report Title

Compliance
Assurance

Organisational
Impact

Assurance Themes

N/A

Moderate

Risk and Resilience, Information Governance, Cyber
Security, Governance and Decision Making,
Legislative/Regulatory Compliance

Good

N/A

Minor

Risk and Resilience, Financial Management, Value
for Money, Asset Management, Governance and
Decision Making, Legislative/Regulatory Compliance

Good

Acceptable

Minor

Risk and Resilience, Governance and Decision
Making, Legislative/Regulatory Compliance,
Performance Management

Good

Good

N/A

Control
Environment
Assurance

ICT and Information Governance
Data Protection Impact
Assessments

Limited

Page 66

Directorate Risks – City Development
Strategic Investment Fund
Acquisitions
Directorate Risks – Housing
Retirement Wellbeing
Checks

Schools
Secondary School Audit

Risk and Resilience, Human Resource Management,
Governance and Decision Making, Financial
Management, Legislative/Regulatory Compliance,
Procurement, Contract and Commissioning, Value for
Money

Audit Opinion
Report Title

Control
Environment
Assurance

School Voluntary Fund
audits x 2

Compliance
Assurance

Organisational
Impact

N/A certification of account balances

Assurance Themes

Financial Management

5

Summary of Audit Activity and Key Issues

5.1

During the reporting period, there have been no limitations to the scope, and nothing has arisen to compromise our
independence.
Limited or No Assurance Opinions

Page 67

5.2

Of the audit reviews finalised during the period, no weaknesses have been identified that would result in “major”
organisational impact. However, one audit received a limited control environment opinion.
Data Protection Impact Assessments

5.2.1 During the period we completed an audit of Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIAs). A DPIA form must be completed
for any new or change in service where personal or special categories of personal data is used. DPIAs are an important tool
for accountability, as they help the council comply with the requirements of data protection legislation to identify and reduce
privacy risks.
5.2.2 The overall objective of our audit was to provide assurance that there are appropriate controls in place to ensure DPIAs are
completed where required. Appropriate guidance is in place for producing DPIAs, Information Management & Governance
(IM&G) maintain a library of those DPIAs they are aware of and there is a route in place to escalate those considered high
risk. However, we have provided limited assurance on the control environment overall as a result of weaknesses identified in
relation to DPIAs not being progressed appropriately, not being signed off and insufficient monitoring to ensure this was
being completed.
5.2.3 Management have responded positively, agreeing to all of our recommendations. A review of the DPIA process has
commenced and will incorporate our findings and recommendations into this. We will be completing a follow up audit to
provide assurance that actions have been implemented accordingly.

6

Other Audit Work

Page 68

Audit Work Completed

Details

Contribution to assurance

Children and Families – Families First
Grant Validation

Grant claim validation work carried out to
support the Directorate.

We were able to confirm the validity of the
claim. The work contributes to assurances in
respect of financial management and
governance.

Green Homes Grant Validation

Grant claim validation work carried out in
respect of funding received for the
installation of eligible measures to save
households money, cut carbon, and create
green jobs.

We were able to confirm that the monies have
been spent in accordance with the grant
conditions. The work contributes to assurances
in respect of financial management and
governance.

Core Business Transformation –
Work Packages

Provision of support to various work
streams within Financial Services that have
been set up to ensure that working
practices are fit for purpose and in
preparation for the introduction of the new
core system.

We have worked alongside financial services
on the development of a range of budget
monitoring dashboards. The work contributes
across a range of assurances including
financial management and control, risk
management, governance and decision
making and business innovation.

Core Business Transformation –
Programme Assurance

Ongoing work to provide review, advice
and challenge to the Programme Board
including oversight and advice around the
procurement process.

We have continued to provide assurance in
respect of the procurement and risk
management process including the provision of
regular reports to the Programme Board. The
work contributes across a range of assurances
including financial management and control,
risk management, governance and decision
making, programme management and
contracts and procurement.

Page 69

Audit Work Completed

Details

Contribution to assurance

Contracts Procedure Rules Review

Contribution to the regular review of the
council’s Contracts Procedure Rules.

The work helps to ensure that the council’s
Contract Procedure Rules remain up to date
and fit for purpose. Recent areas of focus have
included the way in which CPRs can facilitate
commercial activity, and ensuring that
delegations remain appropriate.

Community Cloud Executive Steering
Committee

Ongoing work to provide review, advice,
and challenge to the Microsoft 365
transitional projects.

We provide review and challenge to the
committee. The work contributes across a
range of assurances including governance and
decision making, value for money and
information security.

General audit queries and advice
issued

Over the course of the year, we have
received and responded to a number of
queries and requests for advice from
departments and service areas. These
have covered a range of themes and areas,
with a significant number relating to
financial controls and decisions in schools.

The work contributes to assurance in a range
of areas, in particular governance and decision
making and financial control. The dialogue with
service areas demonstrates how respected
and valued the Internal Audit service is. It also
provides a level of procedural oversight and a
source of intelligence to feed into the audit
planning process.

Fraud Risk Mapping – Data Analytics

Work to assess fraud risks and compile
systems maps with a view to developing
data analytics reporting where appropriate.

We are evaluating the deployment of modern
auditing techniques, contributing to assurances
around the management of fraud and
corruption risks and helping to further instil the
anti-fraud culture.

Treasury Management – Data
Analytics

We have undertaken the initial work to
establish an on-going audit programme to
provide timely assurance over the accuracy
and completeness of treasury transactions.
This tranche of work has included
transactions which have occurred since the
last audit, March 2020, to January 2022.

Where information was available for the period
under review, we can provide assurance that
treasury transactions have been correctly
received or paid, including that interest
amounts have been calculated correctly.
We will be undertaking sample testing where it
is not possible to incorporate data analysis to

Audit Work Completed

Page 70
7

Details

Contribution to assurance

Once the audit programme is embedded,
we will be providing regular reporting of
outcomes to the service.

provide assurance on the whole population of
transactions.

£150 Energy Bill Support Scheme

Attendance at Project Board set up to
oversee the administration of the £150
energy bill support payment to eligible
properties, including the discretionary grant
component.

Our place on the Project Board enables us to
provide advice around the controls in place
and to ensure that these are designed to meet
government guidance and mitigate the risk of
fraud.

Income Recovery Board

Attendance at the Adults & Health
Programme Board overseeing various
ongoing developments looking at
maximising client contributions.

We provide a check and challenge role to
support the service and ensure that potential
risks and control weaknesses are highlighted
and considered in the service redesign.

Adults & Health Budget Review
Group

Attendance at a group within Adults &
Health that has been set up to monitor
progress in the achievement of Budget
Action Plans.

This provides us with valuable oversight of
progress against Budget Action Plans within
the directorate, including the agreement of
actions taken where risks to delivery are
identified.

Information Governance Policy
Review Group

Attendance at a group set up to review
existing information governance policies
and protocols.

This enables us to provide support and advice
around the policies under review, also offering
valuable oversight around the risk
management process.

Other Audit Activities
Audit Activity

Description

Client Liaison Activities

Provision of professional advice to officers, including client liaison activities
that promote the work of Internal Audit, and to reinforce the importance of
robust controls and good governance.

Audit Activity

Description

Board, committee and working group attendance

Attendance at various boards, committees and working groups including
Directorate and Service Leadership Teams.

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee support

Drafting reports and attending meetings of the Corporate Governance and
Audit Committee. Responding to member queries.

Audit and Risk Updates

Regular meetings between the Head of Audit and the Intelligence and Policy
Service to share information around a number of areas that contribute to the
risk management process.

8

Work in Progress

8.1

The following table provides a summary of audits in progress at the time of producing this report:

Page 71

Assurance Block/ Audit Assignment

Fieldwork in
Progress

Adults & Health – CIS Payments



Adults & Health – Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards Follow Up



Adults & Health – Payments to Providers of Homecare Follow Up



Draft Report



Procurement – Temporary Staff Vetting Contract Review
Procurement – Management of Off-Contract Expenditure in Parks and
Countryside



Housing – Asbestos



Housing – Rents



Finalisation

Assurance Block/ Audit Assignment

Fieldwork in
Progress

Draft Report

Other Directorate Risks – High Value Stock Management



Other Directorate Risks – Employee Outside Interests



Other Directorate Risks – Direct Payments



Finance and Key Financial Systems – Capital Programme Central Controls



Finance and Key Financial Systems – FMS Creditor Purchase and Payment;
Central and Directorate Processes



Schools – School Voluntary Fund Audits



Finalisation

Page 72



Schools – High School Audit



Schools – Primary School Audit
Covid-19 Business Grants



Contain Outbreak Management Fund Grant



9

Internal Audit Productivity

9.1

We are currently on schedule to complete the work identified as a priority for inclusion in the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan by
quarter 1 in 2022/23. We have also gained assurances through a wide range of other sources as reflected in sections 6 and
7 above. This will be sufficient to enable us to deliver the Head of Audit Annual Opinion.

9.2

The following bar chart provides a comparison of agreed audit plan days against the days that have been used so far in the
2021/22 Internal Audit plan.

Page 73
10

Internal Audit Performance
Feedback

10.1

We actively monitor our performance in a number of areas and encourage feedback. A customer satisfaction questionnaire
(CSQ) is issued with every audit report. The questionnaires ask for the auditee’s opinion on a range of issues and asks for
an assessment ranging from 5 (for excellent) to 1 (for poor). The results are presented as an average of the scores received
for each question.

10.2

The results of the questionnaires are reported to the Audit Leadership Team and used to determine areas for improvement
and inform the continuing personal development training programme for Internal Audit staff.

10.3

We have continued to look at ways of maximising our CSQ feedback, and the Chair of the Committee has recently written
to the Chief Executive and the Director of Resources, who have asked for the support of the council’s leadership team in
helping to ensure all service areas provide feedback where requested. This message has also been circulated through the
Best Council Leadership Team. Standard wording has been agreed amongst the Internal Audit team to emphasise and
consistently promote the requirement of responding to CSQ’s to enable continuous improvement within the Internal Audit
process.

10.4

For the period from 1st December 2021 to 28th February 2022 we have issued a total of 12 Customer Satisfaction
Questionnaires and received 6 completed returns at a response rate of 50% in the period. A summary of the scores is
presented in the table below. We have also included a graph that shows the response rate by Directorate.

Page 74

Average Score
(out of 5)

Max Value

Min Value

Sufficient notice was given

5.00

5.00

5.00

Level of consultation on scope

4.60

5.00

4.00

Auditor’s understanding of systems

4.17

5.00

4.00

Audit was undertaken efficiently

4.83

5.00

4.00

Level of consultation during the audit

4.60

5.00

4.00

Audit carried out professionally and objectively

5.00

5.00

5.00

Accuracy of draft report

5.00

5.00

5.00

Opportunity to comment on audit findings

5.00

5.00

5.00

Clarity and conciseness of final report

5.00

5.00

5.00

Question

Average Score
(out of 5)

Max Value

Min Value

Prompt issue of final report

5.00

5.00

5.00

Audit recommendations will improve control

4.83

5.00

4.00

The audit was constructive and added value

4.67

5.00

4.00

Overall Average Score

4.81

Question

Page 75

11

Quality Assurance

11.1

The PSIAS require a Quality Assurance Improvement Programme (QAIP) to be in place that brings together our commitment
to continually review and improve the way in which we deliver our internal audit service and embed our quality system into
working practices. Over the last year there has been a considerable impetus across the team to identify areas for
improvement that can be considered for inclusion in the QAIP. As a result, we now have a number of actions that are in the
process of being addressed. The Action Plan is provided below.
Action

Timescale and Status

Page 76

Assurance mapping will continue to be developed to support the
annual audit planning process.

Ongoing – this work is being taken forward through our participation in a
CIPFA assurance framework working group ahead of being rolled out
across the teams.

Internal development of counter-fraud training for use on the
Performance and Learning (PAL) system.

Substantially complete – the counter fraud training has been developed
and has now passed the first testing phase. The next steps will involve
consulting a wider range of officers prior to roll out.

A communications plan will be developed to roll out the counter-fraud
training on a risk basis and further promote the council’s
whistleblowing processes.

Substantially complete – the communications plan has been developed
and will be used to support the roll out of the counter-fraud training once
this has been fully completed.

Internal Audit Counter-Fraud Insite Page – To update the counterfraud information available internally through the intranet.

Complete – this has been refreshed in conjunction with the development
of the Counter-Fraud Strategy and updates to the Whistleblowing Policy
and the external Reporting Fraud, Bribery and Corruption web page.

Internal Audit Performance Monitoring – internal performance
measures, including KPIs, have been reviewed to support and drive
completion of the annual audit plan.

Ongoing – Further work is being undertaken with the aim of producing
additional performance monitoring information for the committee.

Action

Timescale and Status

Internal Audit Reporting Protocols – to update and streamline
directorate reporting protocols to drive timely completion of audit
reports.

Ongoing – Revised protocols have been drafted and are currently at
consultation stage ahead of being rolled out for the start of 2022/23.

Internal Audit Reporting – to review and refresh the way in which our
audit work is reported, with a view to identifying and implementing the
most efficient and effective means and reflecting the needs of
Members.

Ongoing – The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee reports
have been consulted on and refreshed during the year. Work is ongoing
to review the means through which our audit findings are reported to
management, and we have gathered feedback from a range of key
contacts.

Currently the Internal Audit team report on compliance with the PSIAS
through the Annual Report and large Opinion. The external
assessment recommended that compliance is referenced on a more
regular basis, for example within each audit report.

A draft template is currently under review.

Page 77

Internal Audit Technical Manual – to review and update the technical
manual as a means of promoting auditing best practice across the
team.

Substantially Complete – The technical manual has now been reviewed
and the points raised will be discussed at our Quality Operational Review
Group.

SharePoint Online Working Platform and Internal Audit Workflows – to
review our usage of SharePoint Online in conjunction with the
transition to the cloud, and to determine the most effective means of
storing and accessing electronic information. This works alongside an
effort to promote streamlined and standardised workflows in
accordance with the section’s Quality Procedures.

Complete – The Internal Audit Hub has been created on SharePoint
Online and all relevant data migrated across. A process flowchart has
also been developed in accordance with the Quality Procedures, and this
has been shared with the team and published on the Internal Audit Hub.

Internal Training Programme – to identify and address relevant training
areas across the team.

Ongoing – The team has been consulted on areas in which additional
training is required. To date this has resulted in:


SharePoint Online Training – now completed.



Power BI Training – is currently being developed.

Action

Timescale and Status

Page 78

The external assessment highlighted that the Head of Audit should
have regular scheduled meetings with the Chief Executive.

Complete – Formal meetings are scheduled with the Chief Executive
every quarter. This will provide an opportunity to brief the Chief
Executive on key audit activity and obtain information on any emerging
areas of risk or concern.

Whilst the Internal Audit Plan is kept under review and changes made
as required throughout the year, the external assessment highlighted a
need to formally document changes to the plan and ensure that these
are reported to the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee.

Complete – changes to the Internal Audit Plan are now being reported
within the quarterly update reports provided to the Corporate
Governance and Audit Committee.

Recommendation Tracking (New Action) – to develop a process for
reviewing and reporting on the implementation of audit
recommendations.

Ongoing – A process has been developed.
Initial consultation has provided positive feedback. The next step will
involve sharing the proposal with a range of senior officers.

Performance
11.2

We continue to manage our available resources to direct these towards the highest areas of risk to ensure that an evidencebased Head of Internal Audit opinion can be provided on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s
framework of governance, risk management and control in accordance with the PSIAS.

11.3

As we continue to develop and refine our key performance indicators over the year, we will look to incorporate further
performance information to demonstrate the effective use of our resources.

12

Head of Internal Audit Opinion

12.1

The Head of Internal Audit must deliver an annual internal audit opinion and report that can be used by the organisation to
inform its Annual Governance Statement. The annual internal audit opinion must conclude on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control.

12.2

Based on the audit work undertaken in the period, an overall adequate assurance opinion is considered to be appropriate. A
summary of our quarterly opinions for the year to date is as follows:

Assurance Opinion

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Adequate

Adequate

Adequate

Quarter 4

Page 79

12.3

Consideration of our overall opinion takes the following into account:
 results from the substantive audit assignments we have completed during the period;
 outcomes from our audit work not producing an assurance opinion;
 an assessment as to the timely implementation of internal audit report management actions.

13

Counter Fraud and Investigations

13.1

The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee receives a separate report summarising the general activities and work
plan of the Internal Audit Counter Fraud Team, including both proactive work and fraud and irregularity investigations
undertaken.

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B - Monitoring of Urgent Decisions

List of
Forthcoming
Key
Decisions

Publication
of Report

Recording of
Decision

Call In

The information below updates Corporate Governance and Audit
Committee on the ongoing monitoring of the decision making
framework and will support the assurances set out in the annual
assurance report on the decision making framework.

The List of Forthcoming Key Decisions (LOFKD)
Page 81

1. This is the mechanism by which publicity is provided in connection with key decisions in accordance with the requirements set out in the Local
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. (“The Executive Arrangements Regulations”)
2. In line with requirements the Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rules provide that all potential key decisions must be published to the LOFKD
(and a link circulated to all Members) not less than 28 days before the decision is taken unless:
• The decision fits the statutory General Exception (GE) – in which case notice will be published 5 clear days in advance of the decision being
taken (and circulated to all Members); or
• The decision fits the statutory criteria for Special Urgency (SU) – in which case the relevant Scrutiny Chair will be asked to agree that the
decision is urgent and cannot be delayed.
3. Reflecting the statutory exemptions, a performance indicator of 95% of all key decisions should be published to the LOFKD not less than 28 clear
calendar days before the decision is taken.

In the period from December to February 2021/22, 43 of 47 or 91% of all key decisions were included in the LOFKD.
29 of 31 (94%) key decisions taken by officers in the reporting period were included in the LOFKD.
14 of 16 (88%) key decisions taken by Executive Board were included in the LOFKD.
2 decisions not included in the LOFKD were treated as Special Urgency and 2 decisions were treated as General Exception.
4. Each key decision not included in the LOFKD for the required 28 day period, was taken under the appropriate conditions for either the general
exception or special urgency. The reasons for treating these decisions as general exception or special urgency are set out in the table below.

Publication of Report
5. Publication of a decision report enables both elected Members and the public to see and consider the rationale for a key decision before that decision
is taken.
6. There is no statutory requirement to publish reports in relation to officer decisions in advance of those decisions being taken. However, the Executive
and Decision Making Procedure Rules provide for a local (non-statutory) requirement that a report in support of a key decision is published five clear
working days before that decision is taken by an officer.
7. The rules allow for the late publication of reports in relation to key decisions with the approval of the relevant Executive Member.
8. Corporate Governance and Audit Committee must receive an annual report giving details of any officer key decisions taken at short notice in this way.

In the period from December to February 2021/22, 31 of 31 key decisions taken by officers (100%) were supported by reports which were published
five clear working days in advance of the decision being taken.

Recording of Decision

Page 82

9. Recording of decisions ensures that those decisions are open and transparent and that the relevant decision maker can be held to
account.
10. Regulation 13 of the Executive Arrangements Regulations, and (in relation to non-executive functions) Regulation 7 of the Openness of
Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 require a written record to be published in respect of decisions taken by officers.
Arrangements set out in the Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rules, and Access to Information Procedure Rules respectively,
require publication of key and significant operational decisions as soon as reasonably practicable after those decisions are taken.
In the period from December to February 2021/22, 248 decisions were published with the following distribution:
Executive Board

Officers

Total

Key

16

31

47

SOD

11

194

205

Total

27

225

252

Call In
11. Section 9F of the Local Government Act 2000 requires that executive arrangements by a local authority include the provision for appointment of one or
more Overview and Scrutiny Committees with, inter alia, power to review or scrutinise decisions which have been taken by the executive but not yet
implemented. These are known as Call In arrangements and are set locally.
12. Part 5 of the Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rules sets out the call in arrangements adopted by Leeds City Council. Rule 5.1.2 sets out
details of those decisions which are eligible for call in, and rule 5.1.3 provides that eligible decisions may be exempted from call in where the decision
is urgent because any delay would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public’s interests.
13. A performance indicator has been set with a target of 95% of all eligible decisions to be available for Call In.

In the period from December to February 2021/22, 91% of all eligible decisions were available for Call In.
Officer Decisions: - All of the 31 key decisions taken in the reporting period were eligible for call in; of which 2 (7%) were exempted from Call In. A
total of 29 (93%) eligible decisions taken by officers were available for Call In.
Executive Board Decisions: - 3 of 27 decisions were ineligible for call in having been taken under the Budget and Policy Framework. 24 of 27 decisions
taken in the reporting period were eligible for call in; of which 3 (13%) were exempted from Call In. A total of 21 (88%) eligible decisions were
available for Call In.
Page 83

14. Each eligible decision not available for call in was subject to a decision to exempt it taken by the relevant decision maker. Reasons for exemption are
set out in the tables below.

Use of Call In
15. No decisions were subject to Call In proceedings during the period.

Decisions Not Treated as Key
16. Regulation 18 of the Executive Arrangements Regulations requires that a relevant Scrutiny committee may require the executive to report to Council if
a key decision has not been treated as key.

During the reporting period 0 decisions have been referred to a Scrutiny Board as wrongly treated.

Decisions Taken Under Urgency Provisions
17. Decisions taken under urgency provisions (general exception or special urgency; short notice reporting; and exemption from call in) are both lawful and
constitutional providing they meet the requirements in relation to approvals and notice set out in the relevant Executive and Decision Making
Procedure Rule. Having reviewed each of the decisions taken under urgency provisions during the reporting period the Chief Officer Financial
Services is satisfied that all decisions have been taken in accordance with the relevant requirements.

18. The tables below set out details of each of those key decisions taken at short notice, or which have been exempted from Call In, together with a
summary of the reason for urgency in each case.

Meaningfully Monitor : Officer Key decisions taken under urgency procedures
Month

DDN

Director

GE / SU

Call In

Dec

D54699

Director of
Adults and
Health

Special
Urgency

Exempt

Jan

D54789

Director of
Resource

General
Exception

Available
for call in

Authority to Procure Additional Contractors to Support Voids Work
Delay would significantly increase the voids backlog, exacerbating the housing shortage within the Authority.

D55004

Director of
Communities,
Housing and
Environment

N/A

Exempt

Award of Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund Wave 1 Grant for high Rise Improvement Works
To enable Government grant deadlines to be met

Feb

Title of decision
Reason for urgency
Funding for the Social Care Workforce
The decision was taken urgently to enable the release of funding to social care providers as soon as possible to
allow them to take steps to recruit and retain staff in the lead up to the Christmas holiday period.

Page 84

Meaningfully Monitor - Executive Board decisions taken under urgency procedures
Month

Minute

Director

GE / SU

Call In

Dec

91

Chief Officer
(Financial
Services)

General
Exception

Available
for call in

Dec

96

Chief Officer
(Financial
Services)

Special
Urgency

Exempt

Feb

117

Director of
Children and
Families

N/A

Exempt

Title of decision
Reason for urgency
Revenue Savings Proposals for 2022/23 to 2024/25
The detailed service review undertaken so far which has enabled the Review of Adult Social Work proposal to be
brought forward did not conclude until 17th November. This proposal is required to be brought to the December
Board in line with the associated timeframe for the council’s budget-setting process, and as such, cannot
practically be deferred.
West Yorkshire Devolution: Consent to Non-Transport Borrowing Powers
Unanimous approval of all five West Yorkshire councils is required for this matter to proceed, and Government has
indicated its intention to lay a draft Order in parliament in January 2022. Therefore this decision cannot be
deferred to the next scheduled Executive Board meeting, and any delay caused by the call-in process would risk
prejudice to the council’s interests (and those of the combined authority and other constituent councils).
Outcome of statutory notice on a proposal to lower the age range of Wetherby High School from 11-18 years to
11-16 years from September 2022
Statutory guidance states that a final decision must be made within 2 months of the end of the statutory notice
period, therefore by 19 February 2022, or be referred to the Schools Adjudicator. The representation period ended
on 19 December 2021 and the earliest a report could go to Executive Board was February 2022. If the decision was

Feb

119

Director of
Resources

N/A

Exempt

then ‘called-in’ and Scrutiny Board subsequently referred the matter back to Executive Board with a
recommendation to reconsider its decision, this would be outside of the 2-month decision period. The
consequence would be that a local decision could no longer be made, and the matter would automatically be
referred to the Office of the Schools Adjudicator to decide.
District Heating Update: Investment Plans and Renewal of Local Development Order
Exempt from call in because the statutory time limits being worked to as set out in the legal implications section of
the report and the risk of the LDO lapsing should call in periods be required. The decision could not be made
sooner because of lead-in times and preparation for consultation, which have strict legal requirements. Should a
requirement for call in be exercised, the LDO will lapse on the 18th February 2022 without a replacement in place.
This could delay future investment decisions in the District Heating Network and risk delaying connections to
public and private partners.

Page 85

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Report author: Louise Booth
Tel: 0113 3780503

Internal Audit Plan 2022-23
Date: 25th March 2022
Report of: Chief Officer (Financial Services)
Report to: Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions


The work of Internal Audit contributes to Leeds City Council achieving its key priorities by
helping to promote a secure and robust internal control environment, which enables a focus
on accomplishing Best Council Plan objectives.



This report provides Members with the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2022-23.

Recommendations
a) The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to review and approve the
proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2022-23.

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1 The Terms of Reference for the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee include the
consideration of the Council’s arrangements relating to internal audit requirements and
specifically, reviewing and approving the risk-based plan and any additional significant work.
2 The purpose of this report is to present the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2022-23 to the
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee for review and approval. This report also includes
a summary of the basis for the plan. The plan has been developed in consultation with senior
management.

What impact will this proposal have?
Wards affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

Page 87

☒ No

3 A risk-based Internal Audit plan will promote and provide assurance on the effective and
efficient use of resources across the organisation.
4 The work of Internal Audit contributes towards Leeds City Council achieving its key priorities
and Best Council Plan objectives.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
5 The Internal Audit Plan has been developed in consultation with Members of the Committee,
the council’s Section 151 Officer, the Monitoring Officer, senior management and colleagues
from across the authority. Consultation around key risks and priorities continues throughout the
year to ensure that the plan remains focussed on the areas of highest risk.
What are the resource implications?
6 At this stage, the plan is considered to be sufficient to enable the Head of Audit to provide
appropriate assurances in support of the statutory finance officer’s role, nevertheless, this will
need to be monitored going forward. Internal audit resource will need to be focused on the most
significant risk areas and on the robustness of financial control.
7 Internal Audit Update Reports will be provided to the Committee throughout the year. These will
provide assurances around the effective use of Internal Audit resources through information
pertaining to the delivery and completion of the annual plan.
8 The Internal Audit Plan includes a number of reviews that evaluate the effective use of
resources and provide assurance on the corresponding financial governance, risk management
and internal control arrangements.
What are the legal implications?
9 The Chief Officer (Financial Services), as the council’s Section 151 Officer, is responsible under
the Local Government Act 1972, for ensuring that there are arrangements in place for the
proper administration of the authority’s financial affairs. The work of Internal Audit is an
important source of information for the Chief Officer (Financial Services) in exercising her
responsibility for financial administration.
10 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the Head of Internal Audit to deliver
an annual internal audit opinion and report that can be used by the Council to inform its
governance statement. The standards also refer to the need for a risk-based plan to take into
account the requirement to produce an annual internal audit opinion which includes input from
management and the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee. Standard 2020 requires
that internal audit plans are communicated to senior management and the Committee for review
and approval.
11 The PSIAS set out the standards for internal audit and include the need for risk-based plans to
be developed for internal audit and for plans to receive input from management and the ‘Board’.
Within Leeds City Council, the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee fulfils the key duties
of the Board laid out in the PSIAS. This report sets out the proposed plan for 2022-23.
12 The Internal Audit Plan includes a number of reviews that provide assurances around the
application of the statutory and constitutional framework.

Page 88

What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
13 The Internal Audit Plan will be subject to review throughout the financial year to ensure that
audit resources are prioritised and directed towards the areas of highest risk. This process
involves the review of information from a number of sources including the corporate and
directorate risk registers.
14 The risks relating to the achievement of the Internal Audit Plan are managed through ongoing
monitoring of performance and resource levels. This information is reported to the Committee.
Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars?
☒ Inclusive Growth

☒ Health and Wellbeing

☒ Climate Emergency

15 The Internal Audit Plan provides assurances that span a range of themes including coverage
across the council’s three Key Pillars.

Options, timescales and measuring success
What other options were considered?
16 The work of Internal Audit provides a key source of assurance to the Committee. Additional
assurances are obtained through a range of further reports presented to the Committee
throughout the year.
How will success be measured?
17 Success will be measured through the delivery of the Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion.
Each update report will provide a rolling quarterly opinion that will reflect the work completed
during the period.
18 Further performance measures and drivers are under continual review to ensure that relevant
performance information is reported to the Committee throughout the year.
What is the timetable for implementation?
19 Subject to approval by the Committee, the Internal Audit Plan will be in place from April 2022.
Appendices
20 A – Internal Audit Plan 2022-23
Background papers
21 None.

Page 89

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A
Leeds City Council
Page 91

Internal Audit Plan 2022-23
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
25th March 2022

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022-23

Purpose of this report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to present the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2022-23 to the Corporate Governance and Audit
Committee for review and approval. This report also includes a summary of the basis for the plan. The plan has been
developed in consultation with senior management.

2

The Planning Process

2.1

The PSIAS require that the Head of Internal Audit ‘must establish risk-based plans to determine the priorities of the internal
audit activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals.’ The standards state that the risk-based plan should take into account
the requirement to produce an annual internal audit opinion and report that is used by the organisation to inform its
governance statement. The annual internal audit opinion must conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control. To support this, the risk-based plan needs to
include an appropriate and comprehensive range of work. There also needs to be a balance between breadth (taking a
broad look at governance and risk management) and depth (drilling down into specific areas where internal audit can provide
valuable insight).

2.2

In line with the PSIAS the proposed audit plan has been devised adopting a risk-based approach using the following
sources:

Page 92

1








the Council’s risk management processes and the corporate and directorate risk registers;
the results of previous internal audit work and our ongoing assessment of the auditable entities within the authority;
planned work deferred from 2021/22;
awareness of relevant local and national issues;
consultation with the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee, the Council’s Section 151 Officer, the Monitoring
Officer, senior management and colleagues from across the organisation; and
regular dialogue with the core cities and authorities within South and West Yorkshire helps to ensure that we are aware
of emerging risks within other Councils so that they can be considered during audit planning.

2.3

The outputs from the planning process have been prioritised to produce a plan that balances the following:







the requirement to give an objective and evidenced based opinion on aspects of governance, risk management and
internal control;
the time required for mandatory activities required to contribute to the council’s ongoing COVID response;
the time required for anti-fraud and corruption activity;
the requirement for internal audit to add value through improving controls, streamlining processes and supporting
corporate priorities;
the need to retain a contingency element to remain responsive to emerging risks; and
the resource and skill mix available to undertake the work

Page 93

3

Resources

3.1

The Internal Audit team will comprise of 15.57 FTEs at the start of 2022/23 (16.65 for 2021/22) however it is envisaged that
this will increase over the year. The number of days allocated in the plan to specifically provide the Head of Internal Audit
with the evidence for the opinion on the control environment is 2,467 days (2,271 days for 2021/22).

3.2

It is estimated that productive audit days to contribute towards the annual opinion will increase from the level in place for
2021-22. We continue to work hard to get the most from our available resource. This has included a review of our proposed
activities over the year, balancing the need to allow time for ongoing staff development and wellbeing, with the importance of
maximising the resource that can be devoted towards core assurance activities. We remain committed to using modern audit
techniques to ensure that we deliver the audit coverage as efficiently and effectively as possible. Consistent with other
authorities, we will also be looking to draw on a multitude of other work streams to help deliver the annual opinion, including
an increased focus on consultancy work and client liaison activities.

3.3

In the opinion of the Head of Audit, the resources that are currently available are sufficient to perform the work necessary to
deliver the annual internal audit opinion and report that is used by the organisation to inform its governance statement.
Sufficient time has also been set aside for the management, development and training of team members, and to support
their health and wellbeing.

3.4

Other Local Authorities are in the process of agreeing audit plans and budgets for the coming year, and as such
benchmarking data around planned activity for 2022-23 is not currently available.

4

Internal Audit Plan 2022-23

4.1

The 2022-23 Internal Audit Plan is designed to be responsive in nature and all efforts will be made to maximise coverage to
provide an effective internal audit service that focuses on those key issues facing the organisation throughout the year.
Members were consulted ahead of drafting the plan. Progress against the plan will be monitored throughout the year, and
key issues arising will continue to be reported to the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee.

4.2

Table 1 below provides a comparison with the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan in relation to how resources are allocated across
risk areas.
Table 1: Comparison with Internal Audit Plan 2021/22

Page 94

Assurance Block
Covid Response
Anti-Fraud and Corruption
Grants / Head of Audit Assurances
Data Analytics
ICT and Information Governance
Finance & Key Financial Systems
Procurement
Directorate Risks
Schools
CGAC
Follow Up and General Contingency
Total Assurance Days
Other
External Contracts
Total Other
Total Days

Days in 2022/23 Plan
50
377
142
90
200
355
160
858
53
30
152
2,467

Days in 2021/22 Plan
40
353
112
100
185
340
180
762
54
25
120
2,271

% Change
25%
7%
27%
-10%
8%
4%
-11%
13%
-2%
20%
27%
9%

105
105

120
120

-13%
-13%

2,572

2,391

8%

Page 95

4.3

Financial risk represents a key theme running throughout the plan, with budget savings audits included and 69% of planned
audits covering an element of financial management. This reflects the current risk profile of the organisation and provides an
opportunity for us to provide valuable assurances across a wide range of financial systems and processes. With the council
moving towards cloud-based solutions and cyber-security continuing to present a nationally recognised area of risk, we have
also increased the time available to undertake a range of audit work in ICT and Information Governance. In addition to those
audits that fall specifically within the ICT and Information Governance Assurance Block, the plan also includes a number of
other pieces of audit work that will provide us with the opportunity to review the management of risks posed by the
implementation and integration of IT systems.

4.4

A significant portion of the plan is directed towards transformational work taking place across the authority. This includes the
Core Business Transformation Programme which is looking to transform the way in which finance, procurement, HR and
payroll activities are undertaken across the council. Our work in this area will look to provide a range of assurances around
the management of the programme, and we have also set aside time to provide audit support and challenge to the various
other areas of transformational work taking place within services. This will enable us to provide important assurances around
the risks posed, not only from a financial perspective but also the need to ensure continued regulatory and legislative
compliance when re-shaping the way services are delivered.

4.5

Coverage across directorates has been determined based on the level of perceived risk at the time the plan is put together,
with an increase in the time attributable to Adults and Health and in particular Children and Families. This is balanced
between audits that have been specifically defined during the planning process, and the need to support and challenge
activities as they take place. This enables us draw on a range of other sources of assurance through representation at
various Boards and Committees, and tailor our audit coverage accordingly. For example, at the time of developing the plan,
we are aware that an Ofsted inspection is taking place within the Children and Families directorate. As with any inspection,
the specific outcomes and action points will not become clear until the report is published. Maintaining close links with our
key contacts in areas such as this ensures that we have oversight of the subsequent developments and, where the impact
on the risk profile results in the need for new areas of audit to be incorporated during the year, these will be reported to the
Committee through the regular update reports.

4.6

Tackling the threat of fraud and corruption continues to be a priority across the public sector and, as a result, Anti-Fraud and
Corruption activities form a substantial part of our audit plan. This is split between reactive and proactive workstreams,
including time to maintain the anti-fraud and corruption strategic and policy framework and raise awareness of key risk areas
through the delivery of bespoke training. Proactive activities will incorporate the use of data analytics, where applicable, to

identify areas of potential weakness that may require further investigation. We will also be looking to strengthen corporate
links across the authority, improving oversight of the assessment and management of fraud risk at directorate and service
level. In tandem with the Data Analytics workstream, we will be exploring the potential to utilise dashboard information to
support this process. Members will be updated on the outcomes of our counter-fraud activity through specific bi-annual
update reports provided to the Committee.
4.7

We have retained a portion of time for contingency, the calculation of which has been based in correlation to the trends
allowed for across recent years. This enables us to respond to new risks and priorities as they emerge.

4.8

Table 2 provides a breakdown of the individual audits that are proposed for inclusion within the audit plan for 2022-23. The
work is grouped at directorate level or functional area to align with risk registers and accountabilities. An overview of the
assurance that each audit aims to achieve is provided together with a summary of the corresponding themes and risks
covered.

Page 96

Table 2: Proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23
Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

Post payment assurance on COVID19 Business Grants

Anti-Fraud and Corruption, Financial
Management, Legislative / Regulatory
Compliance

LCC05 - Coronavirus: Threat to
health, disruption to services,
significant economic impact

Whistleblowing Hotline and
Reactive Work

Risk assessment and investigation of
allegations and referrals

Anti-Fraud and Corruption, Financial
Management, Ethics and Culture,
Human Resource Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance

Various

Anti-Fraud and Corruption
Proactive Work

Risk-based work to prevent and
detect fraud

Anti-Fraud and Corruption, Financial
Management, Legislative / Regulatory
Compliance, Governance and Decision
Making, Ethics and Culture, Value for
Money

Various

Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy
Updates

Update of anti-fraud and corruption
policies

Anti-Fraud and Corruption, Financial
Management, Procurement, Contracts
and Commissioning, Ethics and
Culture

Various

Independent examination of accounts
and / or assurance that the grant
claim has been spent in accordance
with the grant determination

Performance Management, Financial
Management, Anti-Fraud and
Corruption

Various

COVID Response
50 Days
Covid Grants

Anti-Fraud and Corruption
377 Days

Page 97

Grants
142 Days
Various Grant Assurances

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

Evaluation of control effectiveness
across key systems on a routine
basis, highlighting and reviewing high
risk events or transactions

Risk and Resilience, Financial
Management, Procurement, Contracts
and Commissioning, Anti-Fraud and
Corruption, Governance and Decision
Making

Various

DPIA Follow Up

To review the progress made
implementing the recommendations
made in relation to the limited opinion

Information Governance, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance, Risk and
Resilience, Project and Programme
Management

LCC26 - Information Management
and Governance

Digital Road Maps

To provide assurance that these
cover all areas of the business and
technologies and that they align to
the Council’s strategic vision, both
operationally and in terms of
technology

Business Innovation and Development,
Consultation and Engagement,
Information Governance, Cyber
Security, Value for Money, Risk and
Resilience

LCC26 - Information Management
and Governance, LCC31 - Major
Cyber Incident, LCC09 - In-year
Budget, LCC10 - Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Cyber Security

To provide assurance on how the
Major Cyber Incident risk is managed
through the implementation of
effective risk controls, back up
processes and adequate reporting
arrangements to ensure any
outcomes are actioned in accordance
with Council policy requirements to
ensure Council systems are
protected against attack

Cyber Security, Risk and Resilience,
Information Governance, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance

LCC31 - Major Cyber Incident,
LCC15 - Major ICT Failure, LCC26
- Information Management and
Governance

Data Analytics
90 Days
Specific Plan TBC

ICT and Information Governance
200 Days

Page 98

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

Governance Arrangements

To ensure that there are appropriate
governance arrangements in place
within IDS and that they are
operating effectively.

Governance and Decision Making,
Business Innovation and Development,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance,
Climate Emergency and Sustainability,
Consultation and Engagement, Risk
and Resilience, Governance and
Decision Making

LCC26 - Information Management
and Governance, LCC15 - Major
ICT Failure

Workforce Planning

To provide assurance that IDS has
assessed its current and future skills
gap and addressed risks caused by
the demographic make-up of its
workforce

Human Resource Management, Ethics
and Culture, Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion, Cyber Security, Risk and
Resilience

LCC06 - Workforce Planning,
LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Project Management

To provide support and challenge to
the service in the development in the
new arrangements for the
management of ICT projects

Project and Programme Management,
Risk and Resilience, Governance and
Decision Making, Business Innovation
and Development, Value for Money

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy,
LCC26 - Information Management
and Governance, LCC15 - Major
ICT Failure, LCC31 - Major Cyber
Incident

Microsoft 365

Time allocated within the plan to
robustly challenge the project, and to
provide assurance on the
governance and value for money
arrangements

Information Governance, Cyber
Security, Business Innovation and
Development, Project and Programme
Management Governance and
Decision Making, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance, Value for
Money

LCC26 - Information Management
and Governance, LCC15 - Major
ICT Failure, LCC31 - Major Cyber
Incident

Office of Data Analytics

Time allocated in the plan to attend
the Office of Data Analytics Board
meetings to provide support to the
service and ensure that potential
risks and control weaknesses are
highlighted and considered in the
development of the service

Information Governance, Cyber
Security, Business Innovation and
Development, Governance and
Decision Making, Project and
Programme Management,
Partnerships, Legislative / Regulatory
Compliance, Risk and Resilience

LCC26 - Information Management
and Governance, LCC15 - Major
ICT Failure, LCC31 - Major Cyber
Incident

Page 99

Audit Area

Page 100

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

Information Governance Policy
Reviews

To provide support to the business in
the development of the new
Information Governance Policies

Information Governance, Ethics and
Culture, Risk and Resilience, Human
Resource Management, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance

LCC26 - Information Management
and Governance

New and Emerging Risks and
Priorities

Time reserved to respond to
emerging ICT and Information
Governance risks throughout the
year

Risk and Resilience, Cyber Security,
Business Innovation and Development,
Governance and Decision Making,
Project and Programme Management,
Information Governance

LCC15 - Major ICT Failure, LCC26
- Information Management and
Governance, LCC31 - Major Cyber
Incident

Advice

Time allocated within the plan to
provide professional advice to
officers

Various

Various

Client Liaison

Time allocated to attend Directorate
Leadership Team meetings and liaise
with senior officers

Various

Various

Finance and Key Financial Systems
355 Days
Core Business Transformation
Programme Assurance

Time allocated within the plan to
robustly challenge the programme
and to provide assurance on the
governance and value for money
arrangements

Human Resource Management,
Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Information Governance, Cyber
Security, Procurement, Contracts and
Commissioning, Anti-Fraud and
Corruption, Business Innovation and
Development, Value for Money,
Governance and Decision Making,
Project and Programme Management

LCC02 - Council Resilience,
LCC06 - Workforce Planning,
LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy,
LCC26 - Information Management
and Governance

Budget Monitoring and Control

To review the effectiveness of new
budget management and control
processes introduced across the
authority, including the identification

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Business Innovation and Development,
Value for Money, Governance and

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Audit Area

Page 101

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

and management of unbudgeted
pressures that materialise during the
year

Decision Making, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance

Financial Challenge

To review the effectiveness of the
governance arrangements in place to
drive the delivery of planned savings
targets

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Business Innovation and Development,
Value for Money, Governance and
Decision Making, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Directorate Budget Action Plans

To support and challenge
directorates in the achievement of
budget action plans

Financial Management, Value for
Money, Performance Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Internal Recharging

To provide support to Financial
Services in reviewing internal
recharging within the authority

Financial Management, Value for
Money, Legislative / Regulatory
Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Treasury Management

Data analytics work to provide
assurance on the treasury
management system

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Anti-Fraud and Corruption, Value for
Money, Asset Management,
Governance and Decision Making,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Sundry Income

To undertake analytical review of
directorate income to identify areas
of concern which may require further
investigation

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance,
Value for Money

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Income Management System

To provide assurance over the
systems that ensure all sources of
income have been identified and
accurately processed

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance,
Value for Money

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

Creditors - Invoicing System
Implementation

To provide assurance on the ongoing
implementation the new invoicing
system

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance,
Value for Money

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Purchasing Cards

Data analytics work to provide
assurance on purchasing card
transactions

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance,
Value for Money

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Connect

To provide assurance that there are
adequate systems in place to ensure
that all jobs are identified and
allocated out for completion, all costs
are correctly captured, clients are
recharged for work undertaken, and
all costs and recharges are
accurately recorded in Connect and
FMS. This will include ensuring that
payments made through the Connect
system are to the correct creditor for
goods and services provided.

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance,
Value for Money

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Business Rates

To gain assurance over the business
rates processes for billing, income
collection, recovery action, refunds
and write offs.

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance,
Value for Money

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Bank Reconciliation

The audit assesses the accuracy and
timeliness of the reconciliations
performed on the cashbook and the
authority’s main accounts.

Risk and Resilience, Financial
Management, Legislative / Regulatory
Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

New and Emerging Risks and
Priorities

Time reserved to respond to emerging
financial risks throughout the year.

Page 102

Audit Area

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

Contract Management

Individual reviews of a sample of
contracts to gain assurance that
contracts have been appropriately
procured and are being managed to
deliver expected outcomes

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Procurement, Contracts and
Commissioning, Social Value, AntiFraud and Corruption, Value for
Money, Governance and Decision
Making, Legislative / Regulatory
Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

P2P

Consultancy work to aid in the
development of purchase to payment
systems, including contract
management arrangements

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Procurement, Contracts and
Commissioning, Social Value, AntiFraud and Corruption, Value for
Money, Governance and Decision
Making, Legislative / Regulatory
Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

New and Emerging Risks and
Priorities

Time reserved to respond to
emerging procurement risks
throughout the year

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Procurement, Contracts and
Commissioning, Social Value, AntiFraud and Corruption, Value for
Money, Governance and Decision
Making, Legislative / Regulatory
Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Advice

Time allocated within the plan to
provide professional advice to
officers

Various

Various

Client Liaison

Time allocated to attend Directorate
Leadership Team meetings and liaise
with senior officers

Various

Various

Procurement
160 Days

Page 103

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

Homecare - New Ways of Working

To provide support to the Directorate
in the development of the new way of
delivering and paying for Homecare

Financial Management, Business
Innovation and Development, Project
and Programme Management, Value
for Money, Safeguarding, Governance
and Decision Making, Risk and
Resilience, Legislative / Regulatory
Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy,
LCC08 - Safeguarding Adults,
LCC29 - Sustainability and Viability
of the care market

Budget Review Group

To attend the Budget Review Group
meetings to provide support and
challenge to the directorate in the
achievement of the budget action
plans for 2022/23

Financial Management, Risk and
Resilience, Legislative / Regulatory
Compliance, Value for Money

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Income Recovery Board

To attend Income Recovery Project
Board meetings to provide support to
the service and ensure that potential
risks and control weaknesses are
highlighted and considered in the
service redesign

Financial Management, Risk and
Resilience, Project and Programme
Management, Governance and
Decision Making, Business Innovation
and Development, Consultation and
Engagement, Value for Money,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

CIS Payments

To provide assurance that payments
are only made in relation to people
with an assessed need, have been
correctly processed and are net of
any client contribution, where
applicable. The review will also
provide assurance on the adequacy
of controls for identifying changes in
circumstances. The review will cover
all payments made through CIS

Financial Management, Business
Innovation and Development, Risk and
Resilience, Safeguarding, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Adults and Health
142 Days

Page 104

Page 105

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

Telecare

To review the work undertaken by the
service in relation to the effectiveness
and take up of the service

Safeguarding, Value for Money,
Financial Management

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy,
LCC08 - Safeguarding Adults

Deputy & Appointeeships

To provide assurance that the council Safeguarding, Financial Management,
safeguards the assets of its clients in Legislative / Regulatory Compliance,
such a way that complies with
Anti-Fraud and Corruption
statutory regulations and is in their
best interests. The review is intended
to cover all elements of the process
from the initial acceptance of a client
to the handling of cash at Area Offices

LCC08 - Safeguarding Adults,
LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Recovery Service

To review the Recovery Hubs and
ensure that there are adequate
controls in place in terms of care
received, safeguarding and
safeguarding client’s personal assets

Safeguarding, Financial Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance

LCC08 - Safeguarding Adults,
LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Debt Recovery

To provide assurance that the debt
recovery process for Adults & Health
income is fit for purpose

Financial Management, Safeguarding,
Risk and Resilience, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Advice

Time allocated within the plan to
provide professional advice to officers

Various

Various

Client Liaison

Time allocated to attend Directorate
Leadership Team meetings and liaise
with senior officers

Various

Various

To provide assurance that there are
appropriate safeguarding
arrangements in place within
Children's & Families

Safeguarding, Partnerships, Legislative
/ Regulatory Compliance, Governance
and Decision Making

LCC03 - Safeguarding Children,
LCC13 - Children and Families
Inspections

Children and Families
177 Days
Safeguarding

Page 106

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

Children Looked After Placements
& Payments Board

To attend the Children Looked After
Placements & Payments Board
meetings to provide support to the
service and ensure that potential
risks and control weaknesses are
highlighted and considered in the
service redesign

Financial Management, Risk and
Resilience, Project and Programme
Management, Governance and
Decision Making, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance, Safeguarding

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

C&F Recovery Board

To attend the Children & Families
Recovery Board Payments Board
meetings to provide support to the
service and ensure that potential
risks and control weaknesses are
highlighted and considered

Financial Management, Risk and
Resilience, Governance and Decision
Making, Legislative / Regulatory
Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy,
LCC13 - Children and Families
Inspections

SEN Follow Up

To review progress in implementing
the recommendations made for the
objectives that received a limited
opinion

Financial Management, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance, Business
Innovation and Development

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

NRPF Follow Up

To review progress in implementing
the recommendations made following
the provision of a limited opinion for
compliance with the control
environment

Risk and Resilience, Safeguarding,
Anti-Fraud and Corruption, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Elective Home Education

To review the procedures in place
within the Elective Home Education
service and ensure these are being
complied with

Safeguarding, Performance
Management

LCC03 - Safeguarding Children

School Attendance

To provide assurance that there are
appropriate arrangements in place to
monitor school attendance for
children and to take appropriate
action where issues are identified

Performance Management, Health and
Safety, Safeguarding

LCC03 - Safeguarding Children

Page 107

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

Increase in Foster Carers

To provide assurance that there are
appropriate arrangements in place
around the recruitment of foster
carers

Business Innovation and Development,
Safeguarding, Financial Management,
Value for Money

LCC03 - Safeguarding Children,
LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Semi-Independent Living Contract

To review contract management
arrangements within Children &
Families focusing on significant
contracts

Procurement, Contracts and
Commissioning, Value for Money,
Safeguarding

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy,
LCC03 - Safeguarding Children

Little Owls Commercial Review

To provide internal audit support for
the project reviewing the Little Owls
service

Value for Money, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance, Project and
Programme Management, Governance
and Decision Making, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Information Governance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Ofsted Inspections

To provide support and challenge to
the service in their response to the
outcomes of the ILACS Ofsted
Inspection

Safeguarding, Project and Programme
Management, Risk and Resilience,
Financial Management, Information
Governance, Value for Money

LCC03 - Safeguarding Children,
LCC13 - Children and Families
Inspections, LCC09 - In-year
Budget, LCC10 - Medium Term
Financial Strategy

New and Emerging Risks and
Priorities

Time set aside for the provision of
internal audit support in response to
new and emerging risks and priorities
arising from current inspections

Financial Management, Risk and
Resilience, Performance Management,
Information Governance,
Safeguarding, Business Innovation and
Development, Governance and
Decision Making, Project and
Programme Management, Value for
Money

LCC03 - Safeguarding Children,
LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Advice

Time allocated within the plan to
provide professional advice to officers

Various

Various

Client Liaison

Time allocated to attend Directorate
Leadership Team meetings and liaise
with senior officers

Various

Various

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

Other Directorate Risks / Cross Cutting
539 Days

Page 108

Service Transformation

To provide assurance on the
processes in place to deliver, and
manage the risks associated with, of
a range of service transformational
work taking place across the
authority

Human Resource Management,
Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Procurement, Contracts and
Commissioning, Business Innovation
and Development, Value for Money,
Asset Management, Governance and
Decision Making, Project and
Programme Management, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance, Partnerships,
Consultation and Engagement,
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion

LCC02 - Council Resilience,
LCC06 - Workforce Planning,
LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy

Management of Climate
Emergency funding

To provide assurance on the
processes in place to optimise the
usage of climate emergency funding
received by the authority

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Procurement, Contracts and
Commissioning, Business Innovation
and Development, Asset Management,
Project and Programme Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance,
Climate Emergency and Sustainability

LCC04 - Climate Change, LCC09 In-year Budget, LCC10 - Medium
Term Financial Strategy

Management of post-COVID
service backlogs

To provide assurance on the
approval of funding and the
processes in place to manage
backlogs experienced by services as
a result of the COVID-19 pandemic

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Business Innovation and Development,
Governance and Decision Making,
Project and Programme Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance

LCC01 - City Resilience, LCC02 Council Resilience, LCC05 Coronavirus: Threat to health,
disruption to services, significant
economic impact, LCC09 - In-year
Budget, LCC10 - Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Risk Management inc.
Partnerships

To provide assurance on the central
controls in place to identify and
manage significant risks faced by the

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Business Innovation and Development,
Governance and Decision Making,

This audit will cover the processes
in place to manage each of the
Corporate Risks.

Audit Area

Assurance Themes

authority, including those posed by
increased partnership working

Project and Programme Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance

Business Continuity

To provide assurance on the
development and management of
business continuity plans

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Financial Management,
Anti-Fraud and Corruption,
Governance and Decision Making,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance,
Partnerships, Ethics and Culture

LCC02 - Council Resilience

Application of HR Policies Organisational Culture

A review of the arrangements in
place to communicate key messages
and set the ethos and culture of the
organisation

Human Resource Management, Risk
and Resilience, Ethics and Culture,
Consultation and Engagement,
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion

LCC06 - Workforce Planning

Decision Making

Sample checking to provide
assurance on the quality of
information provided to support
decision making, including a review
of classification and publishing
requirements

Risk and Resilience, Governance and
Decision Making, Legislative /
Regulatory Compliance, Consultation
and Engagement, Equality, Diversity
and Inclusion, Political Awareness

The work in this area will provide
an opportunity to cover a sample of
decisions linking to each of the
Corporate Risks.

Selective Licensing (HRA)

A review of the processes in place for
ensuring that properties subject to
selective licensing are licenced and
inspected as appropriate

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Health and Safety, Value
for Money, Asset Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance

LCC11 - Health and Safety Failure

HMO Follow Up (HRA)

To review progress made in
implementing the recommendations
made for the objectives that
previously received a limited
assurance opinion

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Health and Safety, Value
for Money, Asset Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance,
Safeguarding

LCC11 - Health and Safety Failure

Void Management (HRA)

To provide assurance on the
arrangements in place to efficiently
and effectively manage void
properties

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Health and Safety, Value
for Money, Asset Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy,
LCC11 - Health and Safety Failure

Page 109

Overview of Assurance

Risks

Page 110

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

Civica CX Housing System Project
(HRA)

Time allocated within the plan to
robustly challenge the project, and to
provide assurance around the
implementation of the system

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Information Governance,
Cyber Security, Business Innovation
and Development, Value for Money,
Project and Programme Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy,
LCC26 - Information Management
and Governance

BITMO Assurance Framework
(HRA)

To provide support to Housing
Partnerships in the management of
the BITMO Assurance Framework.

Performance Management, Risk and
Resilience, Health and Safety, Value
for Money, Asset Management,
Legislative / Regulatory Compliance,
Partnerships, Financial Management

LCC09 - In-year Budget, LCC10 Medium Term Financial Strategy,
LCC11 - Health and Safety Failure

Highways DLO (City Development)

To provide assurance over the
arrangements in place to plan and
monitor the performance of the
Highways DLO

Performance Management, Financial
Management, Procurement, Contracts
and Commissioning, Value for Money

LCC30 - Failure to adequately
maintain and manage the current
transport infrastructure to keep the
city moving

Long Term Voids (City
Development)

Review of void management to
identify efficiencies in the process to
ensure income is maximised.

Performance Management, Financial
Management, Value for Money, Asset
Management

LCC09 - In-year Budget

Supported Living Accommodation
(Communities, Environment and
Housing)

Review of the arrangements in place
for supported living costs, including
identifying areas where the
authority's expenditure could be
reduced

Financial Management, Value for
Money, Legislative / Regulatory
Compliance

LCC09 - In-year Budget

Poverty (Communities,
Environment and Housing)

To provide assurance on the
governance arrangements on the
poverty agenda, focusing on either
LWSS or Financial Inclusion unit

Performance Management, Financial
Management, Governance and
Decision Making, Consultation and
Engagement, Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion

Various

Advice

Time allocated within the plan to
provide professional advice to
officers

Various

Various

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Assurance Themes

Risks

Client Liaison

Time allocated to attend Directorate
Leadership Team meetings and liaise
with senior officers.

Various

Various

Individual audits of LCC maintained
schools undertaken on a risk basis
and audits of year end school
voluntary fund accounts

Financial Management, Anti-Fraud and
Corruption, Procurement, Contracts
and Commissioning, Value for Money,
Governance and Decision Making

LCC09 - In-year Budget

Time allocated to draft reports, attend
Officer co-ordination meetings,
briefings to the Chair and Corporate
Governance and Audit Committee
meetings to answer Member queries

Various

Various

Time set aside for new emerging
risks, unplanned work and to
complete individual follow up audits
that are identified as being required
during the year.

Various

Various

Schools
53 Days
School Audits

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
30 Days

Page 111

CGAC Support and Reporting

Contingency
152 Days
Contingency

Total Assurance Days
2,467 Days

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
Report author: Kate Sadler
Tel: 0113 37 88663

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee Work
Programme 2022-23
Date: 25th March 2022
Report of: Chief Officer Financial Services
Report to: Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions




This report presents the proposed work programme for the Corporate Governance and Audit
Committee for the 2022-23 municipal year, setting out future business for the Committee’s
agenda, together with details of when items will be presented.
The work undertaken by the committee will provide assurance that arrangements for internal
control support the delivery of the council’s strategic objectives.

Recommendations
a) Members are requested to consider and approve the work programme and meeting dates at
Appendix A.

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1 Development and regular review of the work programme enables the Committee to manage the
business appropriately in line with the risks currently facing the Council.
What impact will this proposal have?
Wards affected: None
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

☒ No

2 The work undertaken by the committee throughout the year will support the understanding of
the internal control and risk environment and support the committee’s approval of the statutory
Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement.
3 Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and the Police (CIPFA 2018) sets
out guidance on the function and operation of audit committees in local authorities. The
Guidance represents best practice for audit committees in local authorities throughout the UK.
The Position Statement on: Audit Committees in Local Authorities and Police (2018) (which is
incorporated in the Guidance) is attached at Appendix B to this report.
Page 113

4 The Work Programme captures each of the Core Functions of the Committee and provides
opportunity for engagement with the wider functions identified in the position statement as
appropriate.
5 A development programme will be arranged in the new municipal year to support Members of
the Committee in discharging the role and functions of the Committee in line with the Position
Statement.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
6 The Work programme is presented to the Committee for approval and will be presented at each
meeting for the committee to consider and amend as appropriate.
What are the resource implications?
7 The work undertaken by the committee will provide assurance as to the appropriate use of
resources to deliver the council’s strategic objectives.
What are the legal implications?
8 S151 Local Government Act 1972 requires local authorities to “make arrangements for the
proper administration of its financial affairs”. The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations
2015 provide that the local authority is responsible for ensuring “a sound system of internal
control which facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims
and objectives; ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is
effective and includes effective arrangements for the management of risk”.
What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
9 The work undertaken by the committee will provide assurance that there are arrangements in
place for the management of risk which are appropriate, proportionate, monitored and effective.
Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars?
☒ Inclusive Growth
☒ Health and Wellbeing
☒ Climate Emergency
10 In providing a range of assurance as to the effectiveness of the Council’s governance
arrangements, the work of the Committee will contribute to the Council’s ability to sustainably
deliver its strategic priorities by achieving best value outcomes for the citizens and communities
of Leeds, in a way which is both transparent and accountable.

Options, timescales and measuring success
What other options were considered?
11 Members are invited to recommend the inclusion of further business in the work programme as
necessary.
How will success be measured?
12 The Committee will provide an annual report to Council detailing how the committee has
discharged its responsibilities.
What is the timetable for implementation?
13 As set out at Appendix A
Appendices
14 Appendix A – Proposed Work Programme of Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
2022/23
Background papers
15 None
Page 114

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
PROPOSED WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2022-23

Appendix A

The schedule of meetings set out below is proposed but the committee reserve the right to
review and amend the work programme content and meeting dates throughout the year.

Date
24th June
2022

Work Item
1
2
3
4
5
6

29th July
2022

1
2
3
4
5

30th
September
2022

1
2
3
4
5
6

25th
November
2022

1
2
3
4
5

3rd February
2023

1
2
3
4

24th March
2023

1
2
3
4

Internal Audit update report
Fraud and Corruption update report
Annual assurance report on decision making
Governance arrangements for implementation of Best City Ambition and
review of strategic framework
Receipt of External Auditor’s Annual Report setting out findings of 2020/21
Value for Money Review
Draft annual report 2021/22 of CGAC to Council
Annual assurance report on procurement policies and practices
Internal Audit annual report and opinion (including assurance in respect of
RIPA)
Interim Annual Governance Statement
Draft statement of accounts
External Audit Plan for 2021/22
Internal Audit update report
Annual assurance report on planning regulation and enforcement
arrangements
Annual assurance report on corporate performance management
arrangements
Approval of Annual Governance Statement 2021/22
External Audit update report
Informing the Audit Risk Assessment
Annual report on financial planning and management arrangements (to
include Treasury Management)
Fraud and Corruption update report
Annual assurance report on corporate risk and resilience arrangements
Update report on Information and Digital Services Governance
Receipt of audit report (ISA 260) and approval of audited 2021/22 accounts
Joint annual report on information governance from Data Protection Officer
and Caldicott Guardian
Annual assurance report on employment policies and procedures and
employee conduct
Internal Audit update report
Receipt of External Auditor’s Annual Report setting out findings of 2021/22
Value for Money Review
Receipt of Internal Audit Plan
Annual assurance report on customer contact and satisfaction report
Assurance report on estate management arrangements
Proposed Work Programme

Page 115

This page is intentionally left blank

CIPFA’s Position Statement:

Appendix B

Audit Committees in Local Authorities and Police1
The scope of this Position Statement includes all principal local authorities in the UK, the
audit committees for PCCs and chief constables in England and Wales, and the audit
committees of fire and rescue authorities.
1. Audit committees are a key component of an authority’s governance framework. Their
function is to provide an independent and high-level resource to support good
governance and strong public financial management.
2. The purpose of an audit committee is to provide to those charged with governance
independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal
control environment and the integrity of the financial reporting and governance
processes. By overseeing both internal and external audit it makes an important
contribution to ensuring that effective assurance arrangements are in place.
3. Authorities and police audit committees should adopt a model that establishes the
committee as independent and effective. The committee should:
 act as the principal non-executive, advisory function supporting those charged with
governance
 in local authorities, be independent of both the executive and the scrutiny functions
and include an independent member where not already required to do so by
legislation
 in police bodies, be independent of the executive or operational responsibilities of the
PCC or chief constable
 have clear rights of access to other committees/functions, for example, scrutiny and
service committees, corporate risk management boards and other strategic groups
 be directly accountable to the authority’s governing body or the PCC and chief
constable.
4. The core functions of an audit committee are to:
 be satisfied that the authority’s assurance statements, including the annual
governance statement, properly reflect the risk environment and any actions required
to improve it, and demonstrate how governance supports the achievement of the
authority’s objectives
 in relation to the authority’s internal audit functions:
o oversee its independence, objectivity, performance and professionalism
o support the effectiveness of the internal audit process
o promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework
 consider the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements and the
control environment, reviewing the risk profile of the organisation and assurances
that action is being taken on risk-related issues, including partnerships and
collaborations with other organisations
 monitor the effectiveness of the control environment, including arrangements for
ensuring value for money, supporting standards and ethics and for managing the
authority’s exposure to the risks of fraud and corruption
 consider the reports and recommendations of external audit and inspection agencies
and their implications for governance, risk management or control
 support effective relationships between external audit and internal audit, inspection
agencies and other relevant bodies, and encourage the active promotion of the value
of the audit process.
1

As incorporated into Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (CIPFA 2018
Edition)

Page 117



review the financial statements, external auditor’s opinion and reports to members,
and monitor management action in response to the issues raised by external audit.

5. An audit committee can also support its authority by undertaking a wider role in other
areas including:
 considering governance, risk or control matters at the request of other committees or
statutory officers
 working with local standards and ethics committees to support ethical values
 reviewing and monitoring treasury management arrangements in accordance with
Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral
Guidance Notes (CIPFA, 2017)
 providing oversight of other public reports, such as the annual report.
6. Good audit committees are characterised by:
 a membership that is balanced, objective, independent of mind, knowledgeable and
properly trained to fulfil their role. The political balance of a formal committee of a
council will reflect the political balance of the council, however, it is important to
achieve the right mix of apolitical expertise
 a membership that is supportive of good governance principles and their practical
application towards the achievement of organisational objectives
 a strong independently minded chair – displaying a depth of knowledge, skills and
interest. There are many personal qualities needed to be an effective chair, but key
to these are:
o promoting apolitical open discussion
o managing meetings to cover all business and encouraging a candid approach
from all participants
o an interest in and knowledge of financial and risk management, audit,
accounting concepts and standards, and the regulatory regime
 unbiased attitudes – treating auditors, the executive and management fairly
 the ability to challenge the executive and senior managers when required.
7. To discharge its responsibilities effectively the committee should:
 meet regularly – at least four times a year, and have a clear policy on those items to
be considered in private and those to be considered in public
 be able to meet privately and separately with the external auditor and with the head
of internal audit
 include, as regular attendees, the CFO(s), the chief executive, the head of internal
audit and the appointed external auditor. Other attendees may include the monitoring
officer (for standards issues) and the head of resources (where such a post exists).
These officers should also be able to access the committee, or the chair, as required
 have the right to call any other officers or agencies of the authority as required, while
recognising the independence of the chief constable in relation to operational policing
matters
 report regularly on its work to those charged with governance, and at least annually
report an assessment of their performance. An annual public report should
demonstrate how the committee has discharged its responsibilities.

Page 118

